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Company Name 
Nepal Electronic Payment Systems Limited 
 
URL: 
www.neps.com.np 
 
Corporate Location: 
Global Business Hub, 5th Floor  
Naxal Kathmandu 
Tel:+977-4511701, 4511703 
Email: info@neps.com.np 
 
Legal Registration: 
Nepal Electronic Payment Systems Limited has been Incorporated as Public Limited Company under the 
subsection (1) of Section (5) of Companies Act 2063 on 18th Falgun 2069 with Registration Number 
110266/069/070. 
 
Licenses & Certifications: 
 Licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank as Payment System Operator (PSO) 
 ISO 27001:2013 Certification 
 PCIDSS V 3.2.1 Certification 
 PCIPIN Compliance 
 
Ownership Structure: 
Nepal Electronic Payment Systems Limited (NEPS) is a Public Limited Company established as a 
consortium of leading national commercial banks with the aim to establish centralized solutions for card 
issuance, issuing and acquiring transactions with connectivity to various national and international 
payment networks. The following is the ownership structure of Commercial and Development Banks as 
on Ashad End 2079. 
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 Auditors Details: 
 

External Auditor Internal Auditor Legal Auditor 
ISO 27001:2013 

Auditor 

N.B.S.M. & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

6th Floor, Block A (Four 
Square Complex), 
Naxal Kathmandu 

P.J.P.N. & Company 

Chartered Accountants 

2nd Floor Shova Complex, 
Kamal Pokhari Kathmandu 

Gandhi & Associates P. 
Ltd 

Sahayog Marga, 
Anamnagar 
Kathmandu 

URS Nepal Pvt. 
Ltd Rani Marga, 

Lazimpat 

Kathmandu 

 

 

About the Report: 

This is Nepal Electronic Payment Systems Limited’s Annual Report for the fiscal year ended on July 
16,2022. It has been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS). 
Through this report NEPS aims to provide its stakeholders a comprehensive review of its operations, 
performance and its financial resources and long-term strategies.  

 

Mission: 

To Provide reliable, robust and Secure Payment Services to Financial Institutions and Business Houses 

Vision: 

To be the leading Payment Service Provider in Nepal. 

Our Commitment: 

Nepal Electronic Payment Systems Limited gives highest value to security for adherence with Payment 
Card Industry Standards and continues to strive for operational excellence. 

Strategic Priority: 

As its strategic priority, NEPS continues to take various initiatives to promote financial inclusion. NEPS 
embraces collaboration with bilateral and multilateral partners in an effort to contribute to the vision 
of “Digital Nepal”. 
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Cardless
payment 
made
possible.
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MEMBER BANK LIST

Transact with
peace of mind.
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cfb/0fLo z]o/wlg dxfg'efjx?,

o; g]kfn O{n]S6«f]lgs k]d]G6 l;i6D;\ 
lnld6]8sf] gjf}+ aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf 
;+rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{jf6 / d]/f] 
cfˆgf] tkm{jf6 ;d]t pkl:yt ;Dk"0f{  
z]o/wlg dxfg'efax?nfO{ xflb{s :jfut  
ub{5' . o; ;+:yfsf] cfly{s aif{  
@)&*÷&( df ePsf sf/f]jf/x?sf]  
;ldIff ul/ efjL gLlt th{'df / of]hgf 
sfof{Gjog ug{ oxfFx?n] ;bfem} 
dfu{bz{g ug{'x'g]5 eGg] cfzf Pj+  
laZjf; lnPsf] 5' .

g]kfn O{n]S6«f]lgs k]d]G6 l;i6D;\ lnld6]8 
!% j6f a}+s tyf ljlto ;+:yfx?sf] ;xfos 
sDkgLsf] ?kdf :yflkt sDkgL xf] . 

o;n] g]kfn e/sf ;Dk"0f{ a}+s tyf ljQLo 
;+:yfx?nfO{ ;]jf k|afx ug{ ;Sg] Ifdtf  
/fVb5 / o;sf] bL3{sfnLg nIo  
g]kfnsf] Ps dfq s]Gb|Lo e'QmfgL 
k|0ffnLsf] ?kdf cfkm'nfO{ :yflkt ug{'  
xf] . o;} bL3{sfnLg nIo cg'?k  
:yflkt o; sDkgLn] ;kmNtfk'j{s  
gjf}+ aif{ k'/f ub}{ ubf{ o; ;+:yf  
cfˆgf] pb]Zo k'/f ug]{ dfu{df 
nDsL/x]sf] xfdLnfO{ cg'e"lt ePsf] 5 .
 
cfw'lgs e'QmfgL k|0ffnLn] laZjsf x/]s  
If]qdf k|e'Tj hdfpb} uPsf] b]lvG5, 
laz]iful/ ljQLo ;]jf If]qdf o;sf] 
pkl:yltnfO{ gsfg{ ;lsb}g . g]kfnsf] 
a}+s tyf laQLo If]qdf /x]sf] k/Dk/fut 
e'QmfgL k|0ffnLnfO{ la:yflkt ul/  

cfw'lgs e'QmfgL k|0ffnLnfO{ cfTd;fy 
ug{sf nflu x/]s a}+s tyf laQLo 
;+:yfn] e'QmfgL k|0ffnL ljefug} v8f ul/ 
dfgj ;+zfwgsf] Joj:yfkg ub}{ cfPsf]  
b]lvG5 .

To;}ul/ g]kfn /fi6« a}+sn] e'QmfgL 
k|0ffnL laefusf] :yfkgf ul/ g]kfnsf 
a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?sf nflu 
;do / cfj:ostf cg';f/ P]g lgod 
/ lgb]{lzsfx? hf/L ub}{ cfw'lgs  
e'QmfgL k|0ffnLnfO{ k|f]T;fxg ub]{  
cfO{/x]sf] 5 . o; ljefusf lalaw  
sfo{x?n] ubf{ cfh d'n's gub  
/lxt e'QmfgL k|0ffnLdf cu|;/ x'Fb}  
uO{/x]sf] 5 .

g]kfn O{n]S6«f]lgs k]d]G6 l;i6D;\ lnld6]8 
-g]K;_ sf] gjf}+ aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf 
;+rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{jf6 cWoIfHo"åf/f  
k]z ul/Psf] ;+lIfKt dGtAo

/ljg s'df/ g]kfn 
cWoIf ,;+rfns ;ldlt
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a}+s tyf ljQLo If]qdf Aoa;fosf]  
km}nfj6 lbgfg'lbg x'Fb} uO{/x]sf] 5 . 
a}+s tyf ljQLo If]qsf] lj:tf/ ;+u} 
cfw'lgs e'QmfgL k|0ffnL / dfWodsf] 
klg ljsf; x'Fb} uO{/x]sf] xfdL kfpF5f}+ . 
o; laifonfO{ ;d]t dWogh/ ub}{ 
a}+s tyf ljQLo If]qsf nflu g]kfnsf] Ps 
dfq s]Gb|Lo e'QmfgL k|0ffnLsf] ?kdf o; 
;+:yfn] cfkm'nfO{ ;jn kfb}{ cuf8L a9\g'  
ckl/xfo{ /x]sf] 5 .

lgofdlso Joj:yfsf] /  
cGt/fli6«o sf8{ g]6js{sf] dfkb08  
kl/kfngfsf ;Gbe{df xfdL ;b}j 
;hu 5f}F . o;} qmddf aflif{s ?kdf  
kl/kfngf sfod /fVg'kg]{ PCIDSS 
k|dfl0fs/0f o; ;ldIff aif{df ;d]t   
ul/Psf] / o;af6 sDkgLn]  
PCIDSS n] sf8{ ;DalGw lgwf{/0f  
u/]sf ;Dk"0f{ cfj:ostfx? k"0f{ ?kn] 
kfngf u/]sf] k|Tofe"lt u/]sf] 5 . o; 
k|df0fLs/0f cfufdL  !# cS6f]a/ @)@# 
;Dd sfod /xg] Joxf]/f d o; cj;/df 
hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5' . ;fy},  
x/]s b'O{ aif{df kl/If0f ul/g] PCIPIN 
k|df0fLs/0f ;d]t ;kmntfk"j{s ;DkGg  
ul/Psf] 5 .

k|ljlwsf] a9\bf] k|of]u ;+u;u} ylkg hfg]  
r'gf}tLnfO{ dWogh/ ub}{ ;Defljt  
hf]lvdsf] cf+sng / k'j{tof/L tyf 
8f6fx?sf] @$÷&÷#^% lbgg} ;'/Iffsf] 
k|Tofe"lt lbg tyf o;df x'g]  
ultljlwx?sf] Realtime ;"rgf tyf 
hfgsf/Lsf nflu cGt/fli6«o 
sDkgL;Fu Security Operation 
Centre (SOC) ;]jf lnO{/x]sf] 
/ cfufdL aif{;d]t pQm sfo{  
;'rf? /xg] hfgsf/L d cfb/0fLo  
z]o/wlg dxfg'efjx?nfO{ u/fpg  
rfxG5' .

cfly{s aif{ @)&*÷&( df 
xfdL  Contactless Card 
Personalization ;]jf lj:tf/ 
ug{ ;kmn ePsf 5f}+ . ;b:o 
a}+sx? Contactless Card 
Personalization ;]jfdf cfj2 x'g]  

qmd hf/L /x]sf] 5 . ;fy}, cfly{s 
aif{ @)&*÷&( df Cash Recycle 
Machine (CRM) ;]jf ;'? 
ug{ ;kmn ePsf 5f}+ . cfw'lgs /  
;'/lIft tyf ;/n ?kdf cfly{s  
sf/f]jf/ ;DkGg ug]{ ;Gbe{df glag  
k|lalw /  k|of]usf] cfTd;fy ug]{ 
lbzfdf xfdL  lg/Gt/ cuf8L a9]sf 5f}+ .  
;f]lx qmddf  cGt/fli6«o sf8{ g]6js{sf]  
dfkb08 adf]lhd cfly{s aif{ @)&*÷&( 
df xfd|f ;b:o a}+sx?nfO{  ACS 2.0 df 
cku|]8 ug]{ sfo{ ;DkGg u/]sf 5f}F .
 
cfhsf] o'udf la1fg / k|lalwn] km8\sf]  
dfb}{ uO{/x]sf] kl/k|]Iodf o; 
sDkgLn] k|bfg ub}{ cfPsf] ;]jf  
cGt/fli6«o:t/sf] /x]sf] tyf cfˆgf  
;b:o a}+s tyf laQLo ;+:yfx?sf] 
cfj:ostfsf cfwf/df gofF–gofF 
cflj:sf/ ePsf ;]jfx? ;d]t 
lgs6 elaiodf ;dfa]z x'Fb} hfg] 
Joxf]/f hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5' . ;fy}, 
k|afx eO{/x]sf] ;]jfnfO{ cem e/kbf]{ 
agfpgsf nflu sDkgLn] xf8{j]o/ tyf 
;ˆ6j]o/df lg/Gt/ nufgL ub}{ yk  
;]jf k|bfg ug{ ;Ifd ag]sf] s'/f  hfgsf/L 
u/fpg kfpFbf uf}/jflGjt ePsf] 5' .
 
cfly{s aif{ @)&*÷&( df sd{rf/L sfo{ 
;Dkfbg d'Nof+sg sfo{ljlwnfO{ ;do  
;fk]If kl/dfh{g ;DkGg ul/ ;+rfns 
;ldltaf6 cg'df]bg eO{ sfof{Gjog  
ePsf] 5 . cfufdL cfly{s aif{  
@)&(÷*) df g]K; cfO{l6 tyf cfO{P; 
gLltdf ;dofg's"n ;+zf]wg ;DkGg 
ul/g]5 . ;fy}, cfufdL cfly{s aif{ Risk 
Management & Compliance 
gLlt th{'df ul/ sfof{Gjogdf  
NofO{g]5. o; k|sf/sf gLlt  
lgodx?jf6 ;+:yfdf x'g]  x/]s sfd 
sf/jfxL k|rlnt dfkb08sf cfwf/df  
x'g] / cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL r':t  
/xg] ck]Iff /x]sf] 5 .

o; cfly{s aif{ cfDbfgL /sddf ePsf] 
a[2L ;+u} sDkgL v'b d'gfkmf cfh{g ug{ 
;kmn ePsf] 5 . o; cfly{s aif{df 
k|rlnt cfos/sf] Joj:yf kZrft 

v'b d'gfkmf ? %,!*,&@,&#! -kfFr s/f]8 
c7f/ nfv axQ/ xhf/ ;ft ;o Pslt;  
?k}ofF_  cfh{g ug{ sDkgL ;kmn ePsf] 5 . 
ut cfly{s aif{ ;Ddsf] ;+lrt gfkmfdf 
o; aif{sf] v'b gfkmf ;dfof]hg ul/ x'g 
cfpg] /sd ? (,*&,)#,!@) -gf} s/f]8 
;tf;L nfv ltg xhf/ Ps ;o la;_ 
nfO{ jf;nftdf ;fl/Psf] 5 . sDklgsf] 
cfly{s sf/f]jf/, lgofdlso Joj:yfsf] 
kl/kfngf, cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL tyf 
efjL of]hgf / r'gf}tL ;DaGwdf ;+rfns 
;ldltsf] aflif{s k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v  
ul/Psf] 5 .

gjf}+ aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] o; cj;/df 
d o; ;+:yfnfO{ k|ulttkm{ pGd'v 
Pj+ ultzLn agfpg k'of{O{/x]sf]  
of]ubfgsf nflu k|d'v lgodgsf/L 
lgsfo g]kfn /fi6« a}+snfO{ ;+rfns 
;ldltsf tkm{jf6 s[t1tf 1fkg ug{ 
rfxG5' . ;fy} ;+:yfsf] k|ultdf k|ToIo 
/ ck|ToIo ?kn] ;+UnUg z]o/wlg 
dxfg'efjx?, ljleGg a}+s tyf ljQLo 
;+:yfx? Pj+ z'e]R5's dxfg'efjx?nfO{ 
oxfFx?jf6 k|fKt ;xof]u, ;'emfj / dfu{  
lgb]{zgsf nflu xflb{s cfef/ 1fkg  
ug{ rfxG5' .

sDkgLsf] :yfkgf sfn b]lv cfhsf] 
o; cj:yf ;Dd NofO{ k'of{pg ;xof]u 
ug{'x'g] ;+rfns ;ldltsf ;b:ox?, 
sDkgLdf cfj4 ;b:o a}+s tyf ljQLo 
;+:yfx?, lgodgsf/L lgsfox? tyf  
z]o/wlg a}+sx?df sDkgLsf] ;+rfns 
;ldltsf tkm{af6 wGojfb 1fkg ug{  
rfxG5' . To;}ul/ sDkgLsf] ;kmntfdf 
O{dfGbf/L / nugzLntfsf ;fy of]ubfg 
lbg' x'g] k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t nufot 
;Dk"0f{ st{Aolgi7 sd{rf/L au{df ;d]t 
wGojfb 1fkg ub{5' .

cGtdf cfufdL lbgx?df klg 
lautsf jif{x?dfem} oxfFx?sf] cd'No  
/fo ;Nnfx, ;'emfa tyf ;xof]usf]  
ck]Iff /fv]sf] 5' .

wGojfb .
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o; g]kfn O{n]S6«f]lgs k]d]G6 l;i6D;\ 
lnld6]8sf] gjf}+ aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf 
pkl:yt ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wlg Pj+ cGo 
dxfg'efjx?nfO{ o; ;+:yfsf] tkm{jf6  
xflb{s :jfut Pj+ clejfbg JoSQ  
ub{5' .

g]kfnsf] Ps dfq s]Gb|Lo e'QmfgL 
k|0ffnLsf] ?kdf cfkm'nfO{ :yflkt ug]{ 
Wo]o xfl;n ug{sf nflu lg/Gt/ 
?kdf lqmofzLn ePsf] gf} aif{ k'/f 
ePsf] 5 . o; qmddf ljleGg cf/f]x 
cj/f]xx? kf/ ub}{ ;+:yfn] a}ls+u  
If]q cGtu{t e'QmfgL k|0ffnL / laz]ift  
sf8{ k]d]G6sf If]qdf lg/Gt/ ;]jf k|bfg  
ub}{ cfO{/x]sf] Joxf]/f ;a}df ljlbt} 5 .  

of] xfdL ;a}sf] pT;fx, nufj Pj+  
P]Soa4tfsf] k|ltkmn xf] . ;+:yfn] 
xfn;Dd xfl;n u/]sf pknlAwx? 
dfkm{t e'QmfgL k|0ffnLsf If]qdf cfˆgf] 
pkl:yltnfO{ cem dha't agfpg ;kmn 
ePsf] xfdLn] dxz'; u/]sf 5f}+ .  
h;nfO{ cfufdL lbgdf ;d]t cem a9L 
phf{zLn ta/jf6 lg/Gt/tf lbgdf xfdL  
k|lta2 5f}+ .

;f]lx qmddf cfly{s aif{ @)&*÷&( df 
xfdL Contactless Card 
Personalization ;]jf lj:tf/ 
ug{ ;kmn ePsf 5f}+ . ;Dk"0f{ 
;b:o a}+sx? Contactless 
Card Personalization ;]jfdf 

cfj2 x'g] qmd hf/L /x]sf] 5 .  
;fy}, cfly{s aif{ @)&*÷&( df Cash 
Recycle Machine (CRM) ;]jf  
;d]t lj:tf/ ug{ ;kmn ePsf 5f}+ . 
cfly{s aif{ @)&*÷&( df g]K;sf ;b:o 
a}+sx?åf/f hf/L ul/Psf sf8{nfO{ df]sf] 
l8lh6n jfn]6df cfj2 ug]{ sfd ;DkGg 
ul/Psf] / ;f] sfo{af6 ;b:o a}+ssf 
u|fxsdxfg'efjx?n] jfn]6sf] k|of]u 
ul/ sf8{dfkm{t e'QmfgLsf] dfWod 5gf]6 
ug{ ;Sg]5g\ . To;} ul/ o; cfly{s 
aif{df le;f l8/]S6 ;]jf ;'rf? ug{ ;kmn 
ePsf 5f}F o;sf dfWodaf6 ;b:o 
a}+ssf u|fxsdxfg'efjx?n] ljleGg  
b]zx?af6 cfˆgf] le;f 8]la6÷qm]l86  
sf8{df /sd k|fKt ug{ ;Sg]5g\ .

g]kfn O{n]S6«f]lgs k]d]G6 l;i6D;\ lnld6]8 
-g]K;_ sf] gjf}+ aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf k|d'v 
sfo{sf/L clws[tHo"sf] dGtAo

;lGha ;'Aaf 
k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t
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ablnFbf] kl/j]z, ;do ;+u} eO{/x]sf  
;"rgf k|lalwsf] ljsf;, cy{tGqdf 
a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] a9\bf]  
of]ubfg / e'QmfgL k|0ffnL / laz]ift 
k|lalwsf] If]qdf eO{/x]sf] glagtd\  
vf]h / pknlAwnfO{ ;+:yfn] k|bfg ug]{  
;]jfdf ;dofg's'n ;dflji6 ug{ 
of]Uo sd{rf/L 5gf]6 / xfd|f 
sd{rf/Lx?df 1fg, lzk Pa+ Ifdtf 
clja[l2 ug{sf nflu cfj:os kg]{ 
ljljw lsl;dsf tflnd k|efasf/L ?kdf 
k|bfg ug]{ Aoal:yt kl/kf6Lsf] ;'?jft  
u/]sf 5f}+ . o; af6 gljg kl/jt{g 
Pa+  cj;/ tyf r'gf}tLx?nfO{ ;dod} 
;lx cf+sng ug{ ;Ifd Joj:yfklso 
s'zntf ljsf; x'g] / ck]lIft glthf 
xflzn ug{ xfd|f sd{rf/Lx? ;Ifd x'g] 
clek|fo /fv]sf] 5' .

cfly{s aif{ @)&*÷&( df ISO 27001 : 
2013 ;l6{lkms]zg ;DkGg u/]sf 5f}+ . 
o;af6 o; ;+:yfn] ;"rgf k|ljlwsf]  
k|of]u tyf ;'/Iffsf nflu cjnDag  
u/]sf] sfo{ljlw / k|of]u cGt/fli6«o 
dfkb08 cg';f/ /x]sf] k|Tofe"lt  
u/]sf] 5 .

cfufdL cfly{s aif{  E-Com Gateway 

/ Merchant Management 
System sf] k"jf{wf/ tof/ ul/ ;b:o 
a}+sx?df pQm ;]jf lj:tf/ ul/g]5 . 
;fy}, o; sDkgLn] ;b:o a}+s 
tyf ljlto ;+:yfx?nfO{ lbb}+ cfPsf]  
;]jfx? ;'lb|9 Pad\ lj:tf/ ug{sf nflu 
la:t[t kl/of]hgf vfsf tof/ ul/  
r/0fa4 ?kdf ljleGg kl/of]hgf 
sfof{Gjogdf NofO{g] 5 .

;+:yfsf] d'Vo pb]Zo cg'?k x'g] ul/ sf8{  
k]d]G6sf cnfjf l8lh6n k]d]G6sf  
;Defljt  If]qx?sf] klxrfg ul/ To; tkm{ 
;d]t cfufdL aif{ 7f]; sbd rflng]5 . 
klxrfg ePsf l8lh6n k]d]G6sf If]qx?df 
of]hgfa4 lx;fan] sfo{ cuf8L a9fO{g]5 
h;af6 e'QmfgL k|0ffnL / ljz]ift l8lh6n 
k]d]G6sf If]qdf cfˆgf] cAan pkl:ylt 
hgfpg o; ;+:yf ;Ifd x'g] la:jf; 
lnPsf] 5' .
 
;b:o tyf ;fem]bf/ a}+s tyf ljQLo 
;+:yfx? ;+u lg/Gt/ ;Dafb /  
;DalGwt laifodf lgoldt  
cGt/lqmof ug]{ kl/kf6Lsf] ;'?jft  
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The way to a
safer business
deals.



Robin Kumar Nepal
Chairman

Mr. Robin Nepal is the Deputy General Manager 
at Sunrise Bank Limited. Mr. Nepal has banking 
experience of more than 2 decades and served 
various senior management roles in corporate 
lending and risk management. He started his 
banking career at Nepal Grindlays Bank Ltd. now 
is Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Ltd. He holds a 
master’s degree in business administration.

Bishwambhar Neupane
Director

Mr. Bishwambhar Neupane has been associated 
with Machhapuchchhre Bank Limited since July 16, 
2004. He has long experience in banking sectors 
with vast knowledge of overall banking operation 
and management. Mr. Neupane is an MBA graduate 
from Kathmandu University. He is a member of the 
Board of NEPS representing Machhapuchchhre Bank 
Limited Since 2077/09/16.

Anil Joshi
Director

Mr. Anil Joshi possesses more than 21 years of 

Technology. He holds master’s degree in computer 
engineering from Technological University of 
Podillia, Ukraine and Executive MBA degree 
from Purbanchal University. Mr. Joshi started 
banking career from Machhapuchchhre Bank 
Ltd. as a Head of IT. He is a member of the 
Board of NEPS representing Global IME Bank 
Limited Since 2077/06/08.

Niraj Sharma
Director

Mr. Niraj Sharma is associated with Nabil 
Bank Limited. He holds master's degree 
from Kathmandu University and has over 20 
years of Banking Experience. He has rich 

Digital payment solutions along with Banking 
Card and Remittance. He is a member of 
the Board of NEPS representing Nabil Bank 
Limited since 2079/05/12.
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Suresh Raj Maharjan
Director 

Mr. Suresh Raj Maharjan is associated with 
Siddhartha Bank Limited. He holds master’s degree 
from Tribhuvan University and has over 20 years 
of Banking Experience. He has rich experience in 

and Digital payment solutions. He is a member of 
the Board of NEPS representing Siddhartha Bank 
Limited Since 2074/06/29.

Sanjeeb Kumar Shrestha
Director 

Mr. Sanjeeb Kumar Shrestha is associated with 
Citizens Bank International Limited. He holds 
master’s in computer engineering from Ukraine and 

of Information Technology. He has been working in 

of Branchless Banking, Card, and Remittance. He is a 
member of the Board of NEPS representing Citizens 
Bank International Limited Since 2074/06/29.

Bal Krishna Joshi
Director

has played important role in building cross border 

Mr. Joshi is credited with successful establishment 
of Thamel Remit, Leapfrog Technologies and 

and cross Border Payments. He is a member of the 
Board of NEPS as an Independent Director Since 
2077/04/18.
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ATM Management Service is 
a centralized monitoring unit, 
involved in monitoring and 
implementation of ATM services 
so as to manage, monitor, and 
register ATM machines events. 
The system is liable to monitor 
the surveillance of the machine, 
detecting and removing errors 
at a very short notice. We are 
providing 24*7 monitoring 
service to ensure smooth ATM 
operation and customer care. 
Currently, NEPS is managing 
2000+ ATMs on behalf of our 
Member Banks. 

Card issuing involves creating 
tailor-made card programs that 
suit the ever-changing needs of 
customers in order to issue physical 
cards. NEPS offers end to end 
card issuance and management 
services for different types of 
cards like Debit, Credit, Prepaid 
to our Member Banks.

3-D Secure is a protocol 
designed to be an additional 
security layer for online credit 
and debit card transactions. 
The name refers to the “three 
domains” which interact using the 
protocol: the merchant/acquirer 
domain, the issuer domain, and 
the interoperability domain. We 
are providing latest ACS 2.2 
platform to our Member Banks

NEPS offers capability and 
solutions to our member banks to 
personalize the cards in their own 
premises at multiple locations. 
With this solution member banks 
can opt contact or contactless 
card personalization in their own 
location and convenience.

ATM acquiring solution provides 
the ability to manage all types 
of ATM devices. It supports all 
leading brands of ATMs including 
NCR, Diebold, Wincor. Our 
ATM acquiring service provides 
banks and ATM deployers 
with the ability to offer more 
than a traditional self-service 
experience on top of the complete 
set of conventional features. 
NEPS offers ATM & PoS acquiring 
of all major card networks like 
Visa, Mastercard and Union Pay 
International (UPI). We also offer 
life cycle management of ATM & 
PoS acquiring transaction to our 
Member Banks.

GREEN PIN is a paperless 
Pin feature introduced as 
a replacement for Physical 
Paper Pin. Green PIN is a more 
convenient, and faster way to get 
PIN in a paperless and secure 
manner. Similar to a PIN Mailer, 
it is a One-Time Password (OTP) 
generated and sent to card 
holders directly in their registered 

time activation of ATM.

AT M
$

ATM Services

Card Issuance

3D Secure Service

Card Personalization

Acquiring Service

Green Pin

Debit

Credit

prepaid
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NEPS monitoring unit is an 
arrangement for providing 24*7 

banks and end customers. They 
provide necessary information 
and handle the issues/queries of 
the end users of such members. 
NEPS monitoring unit’s function is 
backed by the resources having 
both technical and operational 
expertise. A separate section is 
available in NEPS’s website (neps.
com.np) to handle grievances 
related to NEPS. The registered 
grievances and feedback are 
handled by dedicated team. 
The Helpdesk team can also be 
contacted through phone, mobile, 
Toll-Free number or an email. 
NEPS’s helpdesk team has also 
been supporting the end users 
and creditors/merchant on-
boarded by the member BFIs 
for any related technical issues. 
However, support related to 
transactions are done by the 
onboarding banks with needed 
support and coordination from 
NEPS.

Monitoring & Help 
Desk

through these ATM terminals. 
NEPS help members banks to 
proactively monitor, identify 

through comprehensive fraud 
management solutions.

Fraud Management

NEPS offers various services to 
our member banks to deploy 
PoS terminal at various merchant 
locations through merchant 
onboarding, transaction 
management and settlement. 
We support both contact and 
contactless terminals and all 
major networks like Visa, 
Mastercard and UPI (Union Pay 
International).

PoS Management

Through our core switching system, 
we process communications 
between all the members bank 
and card networks for transaction 
processing.

Transaction Processing

have introduced Cash Recycler 

year and the same has been 
expanded to other member 
banks during the reporting 
period. One of the technological 
innovations, the “CRM is a self-
service terminal that allows a 
customer to make both cash 
deposit and withdrawals. With 
the use of CRM, we expect the 
greater experience in terms of 
technology powered solution and 
time saving to account holder in 
deposition and cash withdrawal 
without visiting to bank’s branch.

Cash Recycler 
Machine

During the Fiscal Year 2078/79, 
we have been able to expand 
the contact less card to most 
of our member banks and is in 
process of implementation by the 
remaining banks. A contactless 
card is a chip card that also has 
technology embedded in it that 
lets you pay over a secure radio 
interface. And this technology is 
great for all of us as we don’t 
want to swipe or dip our cards 
due to COVID-19. We expect to 

year 2079/80. 

Contactless Card
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NEPS was established to provide its customers with the readymade solution of Issuance of 
Cards, Acquiring transactions through different delivery channels, connectivity to different 
payment associations in the country and international payment organization, along with it all 
the related settlement, operational and security aspects on the same. To meet our objective, 
during the FY 2078/79, we have equally invested in technology, people, system, and process 
automation. 

The following graph represents the growing trend of POS and ATM acquiring in the FY 
2078/79 compared to previous FY 2077/78. 
 
 

ATM & POS Acquiring -On Us (Visa): 

  

The volume of On-US ATM (Visa) has been 
increased to NPR 259,074,199,357 as 
against NPR 178,657,447,767 in the previous 
fiscal year 2077/78. The growth in On Us 
(Visa) transaction compared to last fiscal year 
has been recorded 45.01%  

 

             

                                         

Similarly, the volume of On-Us POS (Visa) is in 
increasing trend. The growth in On Us (Visa) POS 
transaction compared to last fiscal year has been 
recorded 66.74%.               
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Hassle-free
transactions
made possible.
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Information Security Department is entrusted for following roles:  
 Research, develop, implement, test, and review an organization's information security in order to 

protect information and prevent unauthorized access. 
 Implement the Information Security Policies, Procedures and Standards. 
 Ensure that all key operations are carried out in accordance with the defined security 

requirements. 
 Review audit and examination reports dealing with the information security issues and ensure that 

they are placed before Information Security Steering Committee at periodic intervals. 
 Ensure compliance in accordance with regulatory standards such as NRB IT Guidelines, PCIDSS, 

PCIPIN and keep abreast of latest security and privacy legislation, regulations, advisories, alerts, 
and vulnerabilities pertaining to the organization. 

 Develop IS Strategy for the current year and future and develop IS budget. Manage IS 
projects/initiatives and ensure timely completion. 

 Regularly monitor security information and events and report promptly. 
 
The followings are the highlights of major activities conducted by IS Department during the FY 2078/79. 
 
PCIDSS Audit:  
The Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard is an information security standard for 
organizations that handle branded cards from the major card schemes. The PCI Standard is mandated 
by the card brands but administered by the Payment Card Industry Security Standards Council. This 
activity is conducted in every 12 months and our certification is valid till 13th Oct 2023. 

 
PCI PIN Audit:  
The PCI PIN program outlines the security and procedural requirements for acquiring financial 
institutions and all organizations that manage or deploy PIN acceptance devices that process and 
accept cardholder PINs at ATMs, POS terminals. This activity is conducted in every 24 months and our 
certification is valid till January 2024. 
 
Security Operation Centre (SoC): 
A Security Operation Center (SOC) is a centralized function within an organization employing people, 
processes, and technology to continuously monitor and improve an organization's security posture while 
preventing, detecting, analyzing, and responding to cybersecurity incidents. Currently, 85 asset’s logs 
are integrated, and 24*7*365 monitoring is in place. 
 

All the activity logs that are monitored are mapped with used cases, based on which tickets are 
created. Closing the ticket and communication methods used to notify the end user or tier level contacts. 
Tickets need to be closed after proper verification and investigation.  

Weekly, monthly, and quarterly meetings are being held whereas daily news feed, weekly/monthly 
report are being delivered to increase efficiency.  

 
Vulnerability Assessment & Penetration Testing (VAPT): 
Vulnerability Assessment and Penetration Testing (VAPT) is to identify vulnerabilities, misconfiguration 
and other issues that could be leveraged by an external or internal entity to impact the confidentiality, 
integrity, and availability. In order to obtain acceptable level of assurance of the security controls 
implemented on the systems of NEPS, various Vulnerability Assessment and Penetration Testing (VAPT) 
were conducted during the FY 2078/79. Such VAPT were executed as multiple service assignments by 
external service providers, covering network, network policies, web applications, mobile applications, 
and consolidated APIs. 
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VAPT Activity Description: 

S No. Particulars  Scan Frequency per 
PCIDSS guideline 

Frequency per 
NEPS decision 

1 
VAPT (External) VA (External)/ASV Quarterly 6 Iterations 

  PT (External) Annually Bi-annually 
 

2 VAPT (Internal) 
VA (Internal) Quarterly Quarterly 

PT (Internal) Annually Bi-annually 

3 Segmentation (VLAN) Segmentation (VLAN) Bi-annually Bi-annually 

4 PT (Application) PT (Application) Annually Bi-annually 

 

ISO 27001:2013 Certification: 

ISO 27001:2013 certification assures organization’s confidentiality, integrity, and availability of the 
information assets. Information security and its management has always been the priority at NEPS. 
Hence, as a part of ISO 27001:2013 certification, ISO surveillance audit is carried out during the 
fiscal year 2078/79 by the ISO 27001 certified auditors with requirement of complete re-certification 
in every three years.  

ISO 27001:2013 certification was obtained by NEPS on 14th July 2022 from URS Certification India, 
which is an accredited certification body of United Kingdom Accreditation Service (UKAS). The ISO 
27001 certification was awarded to NEPS with validity till 13th July 2025, subject to annual 
surveillance audit. The scope of ISO 27001:2013 includes management, operation and maintenance of 
information security management system covering information system, assets and associated processes 
related to company's business activities. 

 

INFORMATION SECURITY AWARENESS PROGRAM 

Information Security Awareness Program is an organized effort to make employees aware of risks to 
personal and organizational information and information technology and provide them with the skills 
and knowledge necessary to avoid those risks. These programs are designed to help employees 
understand the role they play in helping to combat information security breaches.  

All the current employees and new enroll employees are provided with such programs. For current 
employees it is provided quarterly basis whereas for new enroll employees within one month of 
enrollment. Information Security Awareness Program conducted during the reporting period are 
presented below.  
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For Current Employees For New enroll employees 
Date of Awareness Program 

16th September 2022 25th September 2022 
28th February 2022 7th August 2022 
15th February 2022 2nd June 2022 
8th October 2021 10th May 2022 
 8th April 2022 
 26th December 2021 
 3rd December 2021 
 

ANTIVIRUS SECURITY 

Antivirus software is a type of program designed and developed to protect Endpoint Protection (EPP) 
and servers from malware like viruses, computer worms, etc. It is used to prevent, detect, and remove 
malware.  

Sophos Enterprise Console (SEC) is replaced with Falcon Endpoint Protection Pro which is Next 
Generation Antivirus. It represents the newest and advanced layer of endpoint protection which has 
capability to detect unknown threats based on behavior that isn’t normal. The current License will be 
valid till 28th September 2023. 

CARD DATA FINDER TOOL 

Card Data Finder (CDF) tool is a software that helps to identify sensitive data (cardholder data, PAN 
etc.) within the network and enables the users to analyze, track and report on file content. It also 
provides remediation interface for the users to mask, truncate and/or delete the discovered sensitive 
data. 

Endpoints and servers are scanned quarterly through Card Data Finder tool and existing license for 
card data finder tool lasts till 30th June 2023. 
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We value
safety and
privacy.



 

 

 

At NEPS it has always been considered and focused for culture of robust corporate governance to 
achieve its objectives. A good corporate governance structure is essential for enabling prudent as well 
as effective management that ensures clear alignment of the stakeholders’ interests, ensures 
accountabilities and transparency. It also controls and inspires the right behavior for timely responses 
towards issues and for better performance of the organization. NEPS is committed towards the highest 
level of ethics, integrity, transparency, professionalism, and compliance. The Board of Directors, being 
primarily responsible for the corporate governance of NEPS, is committed to ensure the integrity, 
effective oversight, leadership, and control by directing and supervising the business affairs at the 
strategic level to adhere with the applicable regulations and to maintain the highest standards of 
business best practices. The following Diagram shows the corporate governance structure at NEPS. 

 

 

 

GUIDING FRAMEWORK: 

NEPS is guided by its Memorandum of Association (MOA) and Articles of Association (AOA). It is 
licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank as Payment System Operator (PSO). Various laws and regulations 
which govern NEPS are as follows: 

1. Companies Act, 2063 (First Amendment, 2074) 

2. Payment and Settlement Act, 2075 

3. Payment and Settlement Bylaw, 2077 

4. Licensing Policy for Institution/Mechanism for Operating Payment Related Activities, 2073 

5. Directives and circulars issued by Nepal Rastra Bank 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors is a body of elected or appointed members by the shareholders, who jointly 
oversees the activities of the company and is responsible for the company’s strategy, structure and 
performance including the assessment and management of risk related activities. The Board is 
accountable and responsible for ensuring that adequate system and controls are in place; strategic 
decision making and financial performance of company. NEPS Board comprises of 7 non-executive 
directors including Chairman who is elected from amongst the Directors and Independent Director. The 
Board is constituted by the institutional representatives from the shareholders. 

Following are the members of the current Board of Directors: 

Name of the Directors Institution Represented 
Mr. Robin Kumar Nepal- Chairman Sunrise Bank Limited 
Mr. Anil Joshi- Director Global IME Bank Limited 
Mr. Bishwambhar Neupane- Director Machhapuchchhre Bank Limited 
Mr. Niraj Sharma- Director Nabil Bank Limited 
Mr. Sanjeeb Kumar Shrestha- Director Citizens Bank International Limited 
Mr. Suresh Raj Maharjan-Director Siddhartha Bank Limited 
Mr. Bal Krishna Joshi- Director Independent Director 

 

The responsibility for day-to-day management of the company is delegated to the management team. 
The reporting line between the Board and Management team has been clearly defined in the 
company’s organizational chart ensuring effective monitoring of the senior management by the Board. 
The management team consists of professionals coming from diverse range of professional 
backgrounds including banking, information technology, chartered accountancy, and marketing. The 
management team is led by the Chief Executive Officer, who is duly accountable to the Board. The 
Board is mainly involved in formulating strategic and annual plans, approving annual budget, 
formulating internal policies and procedures including risk management framework. All the key policies, 
procedures and governance aspects are regularly reviewed by the Board. 

CHANGES IN BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

There have been following changes in the representations in the Board from the last Fiscal Year. 

Outgoing Board Members Incoming Board Members 

Name Institution Represented Name Institution Represented 

Mr. Raghu Krishna 
Shrestha 

Nepal Bangladesh Bank 
Ltd 

Mr. Niraj 
Sharma 

Nabil Bank Limited 

 

With the acquisition of Nepal Bangladesh Bank Limited by Nabil Bank Limited in the FY 2078.79, 
Nabil Bank Limited has nominated Mr. Niraj Sharma in replacement of Mr. Raghu Krishna Shrestha and 
the NEPS 144 BOD meeting held on 12th Bhadra 2079 decided to approve his appointment. The 
tenure of newly appointed director will be remaining years from the period of 4 Years from 
2078/08/27. 

BOARD MEETING: 

The Board has appointed the Chief Finance Officer and given additional responsibility as Company 
Secretary, who helps to convene the Board meetings and prepare agendas for discussion in the 
meeting, minutes the BOD decision and ensure implementation of decisions made by the Board and/or 
address the matters raised by the regulatory authorities. The Minutes of the board meeting are 
retained by the Company Secretary. During the review period, a total of 14 board meetings were 
conducted and a summary of the Board meeting is as shown in the following table: 
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S. No BOD Meeting Number Date of BOD Meeting 
1. 129 17th Shrawan 2078 
2. 130 28th Shrawan 2078 
3. 131 29th Bhadra 2078 
4. 132 8th Ashwin 2078 
5. 133 20th Ashwin 2078 
6. 134 9th Kartik 2078 
7. 135 5th Mangsir 2078 
8. 136 5th Poush 2078 
9. 137 6th Magh 2078 
10. 138 15th Falgun 2078 
11. 139 15th Chaitra 2078 
12. 140 28th Baisakh 2079 
13. 141 2nd Ashad 2079 
14. 142 8th Ashad 2079 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Audit Committee formed pursuant to Section 164 of Companies Act, 2063 and functions as per the 
provisions of Section 165 of the same Act. It comprises of two Directors from the Board as its Members 
and the Chief Finance Officer acting as its Member Secretary. The Committee reports directly to the 
Board on the matters concerning financial reporting, internal control, risk management and auditing. 
Current members of the Audit Committee are as follows: 

Name of the Member Designation 
Mr. Suresh Raj Maharjan Coordinator 
Mr. Niraj Sharma Member 
Mr. Rajkumar Khadka Member Secretary 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING 

The committee regularly reviews the internal control system, risk management system and compliance, 
related to financial and operational matters. It also conducts periodic review of financial statements, 
review of findings reported in the internal audit, statutory audit and ISO certification, Legal Audit with 
appropriate recommendations to the Board for necessary policy changes as a result of the audit/ 
reviews. The Audit Committee periodically updates the Board on the controls and risk related matters. 

During the review period, a total of 3 audit committee meetings were conducted and a summary of the 
committee meeting is as shown in the following table: 

S. No Committee Meeting Number Date of Meeting 
1. 27 10th Bhadra 2078 
2. 28 4th Falgun 2078 
3. 29 25th Jestha 2079 

 

REPORT ON THE MAJOR ACTIVITIES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Audit Committee conducted the functions as mandated by Section165 of the Companies Act, 2063. 
Accordingly, followings were the major activities conducted by the Audit Committee in the FY 
2078/79: 

1. Reviewed financial statement of the FY 2078/79 and recommended to the Board for approval. 

2. Discussed over matters concerning appointment of Statutory Auditor for the FY 2079/80 and 
recommended the name to be proposed in the 9th AGM through the Board. 
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3. Discuss and decided to appoint the internal Auditor for the FY 2079.80  

4. Reviewed the findings, recommendations, and management responses of the quarterly Internal 
Audit Reports. 

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

HR Committee of NEPS currently comprises of two members from the Board of Directors and the Chief 
Executive Officer acting as its Member Secretary with an objective to formulate needed polices and 
plans in order to develop and retain necessary human resource at the company. Current members of 
the HR Committee are as follows: 

Name of the Member Designation 
Mr. Bishwambhar Neupane Coordinator 
Mr. Anil Joshi Member 
Mr. Sanjib Subba Member Secretary 

 

All the policies related to employee recruitment, salary and benefits, performance appraisal and other 
related issues are overseen by the Committee. HR Committee provides necessary recommendations to 
the Board for changes in human resource policies and related approvals. 

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING 
During the review period, a total of 7 human resource committee meetings were conducted and a 
summary of the committee meeting is as shown in the following table: 

S. No Committee Meeting Number Date of Meeting 
1. 12 10th Shrawan 2078 
2. 13 21st Bhadra 2078 
3. 14 17th Ashwin 2078 
4. 15 8th Kartik 2078 
5. 16 4th Magh 2078 
6. 17 15th Chaitra 2078 
7. 18 7th Ashad 2079 

 

REPORT ON THE MAJOR ACTIVITIES OF HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE 

The Human Resources Committee conducted the functions as mandated by BOD and policies approved 
by BOD. Accordingly, followings were the major activities conducted by the Human Resources 
Committee in the FY 2078/79: 

1. Reviewed and approved employee performance appraisal procedure based on KPI/KRA and 
aptitude-based evaluation.  

2. The regular promotions were also reviewed by the committee.  

3.  Reviewed and recommended for the approval of HR policy amendment to the Board. 

 

MEETING EXPENSES 

The members of Board, Audit Committee, HR Committee, and other Board Level Committee are 
provided NPR 6,000 as the meeting allowance to BOD Chairman and NPR 5,000 to members per 
sitting. Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) has been deducted from the above payment and Net proceed 
has been made available to members. In the review period, the company incurred the total meeting 
expenses of NPR 3,04,000. The details of the meeting expenses are disclosed in notes to the accounts. 

 

ANNUAL REPORT 2078-79

26 |www.neps.com.np



 

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION 

Annual General Meeting is an apex body for shareholders to exchange their opinions and decides on 
agendas. All necessary information as per the prevailing Company Act is incorporated in the Annual 
Report including BOD report pursuant to section 109 of the Act. It covers all the necessary financials 
and disclosures required to provide detailed information to the shareholders. Mentioned information is 
also uploaded at NEPS’s website (www.neps.com.np). As per the Nepal Rastra Bank Payment System 
Unified Directive (Directive No. 11/078 Clause No. 7), NEPS has been publishing its unaudited semi-
annual financials on its website for its shareholders and public consumption. Any other information that 
requires to be communicated to the shareholders are shared and communicated on regular basis 
through various mediums and platforms. 

INTERNAL CONTROLS 

Internal control system of an organization ensures effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability 
of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulation. The main objective of the 
internal control is to ensure sustainable business growth with stability and to promote a pro-active 
approach in reporting, evaluating, and resolving risks associated with the organizational activities. To 
achieve the key objective, the following policies establishes a structured and disciplined approach to 
perform activities including their associated risk management Thereby, NEPS has incorporated 
following elements as a part of its internal control system: 

NEPS’s Board has formulated set of internal policies and procedures, which are implemented by the 
Management in its day-to-day operations. The policies and procedures are regularly reviewed by the 
Board. The current prevailing major policies and procedures of NEPS are as follows: 

S.No. Policy Name 
1. Financial Rules & Regulation 
2. Human Resources Bylaws 
3. Information Technology & Information Security Policy 
4. Dispute Management Policy 
5. Disaster Recovery Policy 
6. Business Continuity Policy 
7. PIN & KEY Security Policy 
8. Risk Management & Compliance Policy** 
9. News Media Relation Policy** 
10. Anti-Bribery Policy** 
11. Health & Safety Policy 

** Policy under Approval Process 

 

The current prevailing major Standard Operating Procedures of NEPS are as follows: 

S.No. SOP Name 
1. 14 Different SOP under IT& IS Policy 
2. Performance Appraisal Procedure 
3. Leave Procedure 
4. Management Trainee Hiring Procedure 
5. Office Laptop Usages Procedure 
6. Due Diligence Procedure 
7. Staff Recognition Procedure 
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INTERNAL AUDIT 

The Internal Audit reviews the effectiveness of internal control procedures and compliance with policies 
and procedures across all system and operational departments. The objectivity of the internal audit 
engagement is to review and report the NEPS’s management in effective discharge of their 
responsibility. The Internal Audit was conducted by P.J.P.N. & Co., Chartered Accountants for the FY 
2078/79 (2021/22) Quarterly internal audits were carried out during the review period under the 
supervision of the Audit Committee. P.J.P.N.& Co., Chartered Accountants was paid NPR 132,000 
excluding VAT with additional internal audit expenses on actual basis. 
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Every
transaction 
is special.



 

 

Nepal Electronic Payment Systems Limited (NEPS) seeks to ensure that all known and identifiable risk 
are identified, assessed and appropriate actions are timely taken to reduce the risk with adherence to 
the risk management & compliance policy. 

The policy provides framework for the Risk management and compliance to the organization policies 
and to increase overall awareness of risk & maintain compliance throughout the organization and to 
ensure that all identifiable and known risks are identified, assessed, and managed effectively and 
efficiently. 

Risk Management and Compliance Framework enables systematic process of identification, assessment, 
control, and monitoring of possible and identified risks. Risk register is a repository for all the 
identified risks and facilitates in overall administration of all the risks identified and updated based on 
preventive and reactive approach which is quarterly reviewed. 

Risk Governance Framework 

The following risk management framework has been applied by the company. 

 The board and the management shall be responsible for establishing appropriate policies, 
guidelines, limits, and standards and ensuring that they are followed and enforced. 

 There shall be a separate board level Risk Management and Compliance Committee for managing 
the overall risk of the company at the governance level. The Terms of References and composition 
of the committee is as prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank from time to time through its directives, 
circulars, and guidelines and any other specified by Board of Directors. 

 

Risk Management Process: 

Considering the existing and emerging cybersecurity risks and other risks in digital payment ecosystem, 
NEPS committed to mitigate the risks to acceptable level while increasing the value of its stakeholders 
by formulating, implementing, maintaining, and improving the system and practice of Risk Management 
and Compliance. 

 
It consists continuous process of risk identification, analysis, evaluation, and continuous improvement. All 
the identified risks are recorded in detail in Risk Register by respective departments and/or Risk and 
Compliance Team and reviewed periodically in management committee, Risk Management & 
Compliance Committee and reported to Board for necessary considerations. The process is illustrated 
as below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Evaluate 
Controls 

Analy
ze Risk 

Continual 
Improve 
Controls 

Identif
y Risk        

Risk    
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06 RISK MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE OVERVIEW

Identify Risk Analyze Risk

Continual Improve Controls Evaluate Control

Risk
Management



 

 

Risk Profile & Categorization: 

All the risks updated in Risk Register has their own risk profile calculated considering their likelihood 
and impact which contributes to developing treatment plans. With reference to the computed Risk 
Profiles, priorities are determined for their treatment with timeline based on Risk Matrix. Also, 
appropriate control measures are taken to calculate risk profile such as Elimination, Accept, Retention, 
Reduction, Avoid. There is a common and progressive Risk Rating Matrix which is referred while 
updating risks in Risk Register. Risk Rating Matrix is formed with the combination and product of 
likelihood and impact. Likelihood implies probability of occurrence of the risk quantified in the range 
of 1 to 5 where 1 being Unlikely and 5 being Definite. Similarly, impact implies the severity of 
consequence which is also quantified in the range of 1 to 5 where 1 being Insignificant and 5 being 
Catastrophic. 
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Making digital
transactions
easy.



 

 

We feel proud to have strong and dedicated employees and we always value the effort given by our 
employees in attaining the organizational objective. HR at NEPS is guided by HR Bylaws, Health and 
Safety Policies and various standard operating procedures under these policies. These policies are in 
line with the prevailing Labor Laws. Clear responsibilities have been assigned to individual employees 
through Job Description and achievements are monitored through periodic performance appraisal.  

ORGANOGRAM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MANAGEMENT TEAM 

Name Designation 
Sanjib Subba Chief Executive Officer 
Prabin Acharya Chief Operating Officer 
Pabindra Rajbhandari Chief Business Officer 
Rajkumar Khadka Chief Finance Officer 
Navaraj Thapa Information Technology Head 

 

Audit Committee 

Risk Management & 
Compliance Committee 

Chief Risk and 
Compliance Officer 

HR Committee 

Project Committee 
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07 HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT



 

KEY HUMAN RESOURCES INDICATOR 

 

Number of staff in last 3 years  Employee Mix by Gender 
Particulars 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79  Gender Count Percent  
Total number of 
staff 

32 40 48  Male 31 65% 

     Female 17 35% 

  

      
RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION PROCESS 

NEPS aims to identify highly skilled and extremely motivated staff which makes their recruitment 
process rigorous. It has ensured positioning of the right people in the right places with their distinct 
competencies, knowledge, and personal attributes. The HR function is carried out by HR department 
with recommendation from Staffing and Performance Review Committee along with HR Committee and 
Chief Executive Officer. At NEPS, recruitment process starts both internally and externally. For internal 
recruitment job rotation and succession planning is taken as a part of career planning whereas for 
externally it is done through vacancies announcement and placement through different HR outsourcing 
agencies. 

 

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 

Based on the defined job position, pay structure is designed at all levels.  At NEPS, salary revision is 
done twice a year based on market review. Along with salary, there is provision for the facilities such 
as grade, insurance, and other allowances.  
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Following is excerpt of staff expenses for the Last Three Fiscal Years: 

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77 
Contractual Staff Expenses 9,52,134 1,063,738 2,101,523 
Dearness Allowance 28,42,598 - - 
Festival Allowance 27,53,630 2,154,287 1,713,022 
Holiday Allowance 4,61,928 117,788 378,944 
Leave Fare Allowance 15,37,095 1,384,350 - 
Overtime Allowance 1,62,390 92,333 622,978 
Shift Allowance 6,79,952 534,435 383,654 
Staff Allowance 13,11,1781 11,061,048 9,210,448 
Staff Gratuity Expenses 16,54,991 1,414,217 1,181,580 
Staff Leave Expenses 23,49,538 1,747,981 1,282,237 
Staff of the Year - 50,000 - 
Staff PF Contribution 19,86,784 1,698,796 1,418,462 
Staff Salary 1,98,84,108 17,025,625 14,172,673 
Technical Allowance 12,23,998 1,123,819 970,280 
Utility Allowance 17,56,302 1,504,497 1,294,250 
Vehicle Allowance 10,31,951 - - 
Staff Bonus 7,593,191 5,846,612 - 
Performance Bonus 51975 - - 
Lockdown Incentive - - 234,632 
Total 6,00,34,352 46,819,524 34,964,683 

 
Grade is segregated as Normal and Performance which is tied up with basic salary. Normal grade is 
provided equivalent to half day of the basic salary whereas performance grade is linked with annual 
performance of the employee. The staff bonus is distributed to all the regular staff and the one 
completing six months as per the provision of Bonus Act.  

 
Employee Benefit 
Expense has been 
increased to NPR 
60,034,352 as 
against NPR 
46,819,524 in the 
previous fiscal 
year 2077/78 
and NPR 
46,819,524 in the 
fiscal year 
2076/77. The 
growth in 
employee benefit 
expense 
compared to last 
fiscal year has 

been recorded 28.22%. 
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LEAVE BENEFITS 

At NEPS, organization culture is conducive for motivation. Management is always looking for the ways 
to maintain proper work life balance among the employees. Different categories of leaves are 
provided to staff. Among which, all the regular staff are encouraged to take block leave where staff 
are provided with 8 days leave along with payment of one- month basic salary. 

 

STAFF TRAINING & DEVELOPMENT: 

NEPS promotes learning culture with regular internal knowledge sharing sessions as well as external 
trainings. Training is a part of continuous employee development and is vital for all employees to 
broaden their knowledge and acquire new skills. NEPS promotes continuous learning culture and 
frequent knowledge sharing sessions, workshop, and self-studies. The training calendar has been 
developed at the beginning of the year after training need assessment and the same has been aligned 
into annual training budget. The following are the details of different training attended by our 
employees during the FY 2078.79. 

Staff Name Training Name Training 
Type 

Avishek Rajbhandari/ Ajay Yadav Virtualization and Cloud 
Computing Technical 

Deepa Shrestha/ Bandana Luitel Threats to Digital Payment 
Ecosystem 

Technical 

Priyanka Sharma Neupane 
Mobile Banking, Social Media 
Banking and Mobile Application 
Security Testing 

Technical 

Ram Bahadur Rokim Thapa Proactive Cyber Defence 
Strategies Technical 

Sapana Thakuri IT Vendor Management Technical 

Leadership and Strategic Team (14staff) Master Class on KRA/KPI Technical 

Operation/IT Staff Service Excellence Training Soft skills 

All staff AML/CFT Training Technical 

Leadership Team Safal partners coaching session Soft skills 

Deepa Shrestha, Bandana Luitel, Milan Shrestha, 
and Sushil Khadka PWC Capacity Building Training Technical 

CIO, CBO, MT TED Talk Soft skills 

Roshan Sah, Ram Bahadur Rokim, Sujan Kharbuja PWC Capacity Building Training Technical 
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Staff Training



 

STAFF HEALTH AND INSURANCE  

The Company believes that the health and well begin of our employees are vital for their personal 
and professional growth. In order to cover for unforeseen and contingencies company purchases a 
standard group medical insurance to cover employees and their immediate family’s medical expenses 
up to total of NPR 100,000 per annum and group personal accidental insurance ranges from NPR 
10,00,000 to NPR 40,00,000 to cover risks of loss due to accident depending on employee level. 

 

STAFFING COMMITTEE: 

The Staffing and Performance Review Committee will be responsible to manage the recruitment of 
staff, effective implementation of HR By Law as under: 

 Oversee of HR Matters and make necessary recommendation to CEO. 

 Providing additional support to HR department in terms of making annual performance reviews of 
existing staff and rewarding them. 

 Providing valuable inputs and recommendation of new recruitments to the CEO. 

 

HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE: 

Health and Safety is about creating safe working environment at workplace and to reduce the risk of 
accidents and injuries. Health and Safety committee will be responsible to uphold health and safety 
standards at workplace. The committee should ensure and prioritize a healthy culture and cultivate 
happy workplace environment with standardized health and safety policy being formed. 
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  REPORTING PRONOUNCEMENT  
NEPS has prepared its financials for fiscal year 2078/79 (2021/22) as per the Nepal Financial 
Reporting Standard (NFRS) for better presentation and transparency of financial reporting. NEPS had 
adopted NFRS since fiscal year 2074/75. 
 

  SNAPSHOT OF LAST 3 YEARS PERFORMANCES  
Past three fiscal years of NEPS has ensured steady growth in operating income, interest income and 
other income thereby contributing operational and financial stability. Summary of the financial 
positions of the company for the fiscal year 2078/79 (2021/22) in comparison with last two fiscal 
years are presented in the following table: 

Particular FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78 FY 2076/77 
Paid-up Capital 176,000,000 176,000,000 176,000,000 
Reserve & Surplus 98,703,120 47,981,454 5,079,649 
Investment & Placement 150,000,000 100,000,000 45,000,000 
Non-Current Assets 150,386,758 121,083,252 125,520,289 
Current Assets 142,706,314 152,828,122 98,176,981 
Operating Income 221,390,589 163,085,446 138,230,278 
Operating Expense 61,738,788 43,976,554 40,811,990 
Employee Expense 60,034,352 46,819,524 34,964,683 
Gross Profit 99,617,449 72,289,368 62,453,605 
Other Income 16,074,953 10,513,917 5,987,558 
Administrative Expense 12,477,757 11,911,855 37,437,974 
Depreciation & Amortization Expense 34,403,466 18,164,878 24,374,744 
Net Profit/(Loss) -Year 51,872,731 42,901,805 (4,340,767) 

 

EQUITY & RETAINED EARNING: 
Total equity of Nepal Electronic Payment Systems Limited (NEPS) has increased to NPR 27,47,03,120 
as against NPR 22,39,81,454 in the previous fiscal year. The increase is due to the transfer of net 
profit of NPR 5,18,72,731 for the fiscal year 2078/79 subject to opening adjustment explained in 
statement of changes in equity. 
 
The Board of Directors of the company at its meeting held on 15-September,2022 have recommended 
10% as Cash Dividend (Rs 10/share totaling to Rs 176,00,000) inclusive of Tax from the profit of the 
reported year 2078/79. This proposal of the board of directors is subject to the approval from Nepal 
Rastra Bank and ratification by the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders. 
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08 FINANCIAL & RELATED INFORMATION



 

  

 

INVESTMENT & INTEREST INCOME 
Total Investment & Placement in Fixed Deposit (FD) of Nepal Electronic Payment Systems Limited 
(NEPS) has increased to NPR 15,00,00,000 as against NPR 10,00,00,000 in the previous fiscal year.  
 

Similarly, interest 
income has been 
increased to NPR 
10,894,113 as 
against NPR 
5,529,482 in the 
previous fiscal year.  
Interest income 
includes interest 
income from fixed 
deposits and call 
accounts. The 
following diagram 
shows the increase 
in investment as well 
as corresponding 
increase in interest 
income.

 

OPERATING INCOME 

Operating Income of NEPS includes all revenue from core-business activities of the company and are 
recorded net of value added tax and other taxes collected from customers that are remitted or are to 
be remitted to government authorities. 
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Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78 Volume Growth 
3D Secure Enablement Fee 6,518,686 3,664,516 2,854,169 77.89% 
Acquiring Fees: ATM 38,342,529 23,576,083 14,766,446 62.63% 
Acquiring Fees: POS 17,253,744 12,256,944 4,996,800 40.77% 
ATM Mgmt. & Monitoring Fees 2,046,485 2,023,290 23,195 1.15% 
Card Management Fees 68,727,535 64,193,760 4,533,775 7.06% 
Contactless Card Personalization fee 2,261,645 2,237,571 24,074 1.08% 
EMV Card Personalization 5,687,376 4,470,352 1,217,025 27.22% 
Issuing Fee: ATM 45,613,395 28,507,283 17,106,112 60.01% 
Issuing Fee: POS 19,136,925 11,483,099 7,653,826 66.65% 
Pin Mailer Printing Fees 4,810,892 3,711,272 1,099,621 29.63% 
Moco Application (Integration) Fee 400,000 - 400,000 100.00% 
Accrual Income 10,591,377 6,961,277 3,630,099 52.15% 
Total Income 221,390,589 163,085,446 58,305,143 35.75% 

 

During the reported period 
35.75% increase is operating 
revenue has been achieved 
compared to last fiscal year 
2077.78. The increase in 
direct income is due to 
increase in ATM& POS 
acquiring and Issuance as well 
as onetime fee for 3D secure 
upgradation to ACS 2.2 and 
significantly from the 
implementation of tier-based 
pricing structure.  

 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 

Operating Expenses include costs that are related to operations of the company. This is normally 
related to costs incurred in generation of revenue. Total operating expense of Nepal Electronic 
Payment Systems Limited (NEPS) has increased to NPR 61,738,788 as against NPR 43,976,554 in the 
previous fiscal year. 

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78 Volume Growth 
Operating Expense 61,738,788.39 43,976,553.60 17,762,234.79 40.39% 

 

During the reported period 40.39% increase is operating expense has been experienced compared to 
last fiscal year 2077.78. The increase in operating expense is mainly due to increase in visa 
connectivity charges, ACS 2.2 implementation charges, implementation fee for Visa Direct and Green 
PIN PoS and issuer script support fee. Details Presented in Notes to Account. 
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  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE: 
Administrative expenses include general administrative and office expenses. Administrative expenses 
are recognized on accrual basis. All expenditures incurred in running of business and maintaining 
property, plant and equipment other than Depreciation & Amortization are charged to the statement 
of profit or loss and recorded under administrative expenses.  

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78 Volume Growth 
Administrative Expense 17,836,738.08 11,911,855.37 5,924,882.71 49.74% 

 

During the reported period 49.74% increase is administrative expense has been experienced 
compared to last fiscal year 2077.78. The increase in administrative expense is mainly due to increase 
in office rent, consultancy fee, legal expenses, and ISO Certification cost. 

 

  HUMAN RESOURCES EXPENSES 
This has been presented and disclosed under sections Human Resources Management of this Report.  

 

  PROFITS & CORPORATE TAX 
During the review period, NEPS has generated net profit of NPR 51,872,731 as against the net profit 
of NPR 42,901,805 in the previous year thereby registering increase of 20.91%. The details of net 
profit and corresponding corporate tax liability of the reported period in comparison to previous year 
has been presented in the following table. 

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78 Volume Growth 
Net Profit 51,872,731 42,901,805 8,970,926 20.91% 
Corporate Tax Liability 17,164,815 12,847,010 4,317,805 33.61% 

 

 Increase in profit is 
mainly due to the 
increase in operating 
income compared to 
increase in operating 
cost. The tax provision 
has consequently 
increased to NPR 
171,64,815 as 
against NPR 
1,28,47,010 in the 
previous fiscal year. 
The tax rate 
applicable to NEPS 
for the reporting 
period is 25%. 
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1,60,74,953 10,513,917 55,61,036 
6,17,38,788 43,976,554 1,77,62,234 
9,96,17,449 42,212,635 5,74,04,814 
1,24,77,757 11,911,856 5,65,901 
3,44,03,467 18,164,878 1,62,38,589 
6,00,34,352 46,819,524 1,32,14,828 
75,93,191 5,846,612 17,46,579 
1,71,64,815 12,847,010 43,17,805 
5,18,72,731 42,901,805 89,70,926 
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NEPAL RASTRA BANK APPROVAL
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(Figures in NPR)

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 4.1 48,844,708                           36,802,862                         
(b) Right of Use Assets 5 30,963,499                           -                                     
(c) Intangible assets 6.2 61,110,636                           13,834,625                         
(d) Intangible assets - WIP 7 4,761,647                             68,033,643                         
(e) Financials Assets
       (ii) Held to Maturity (FD) 8 70,000,000                           -                                     
       (i) Security Deposit 8 3,602,747                             2,007,430                           
(f) Deferred Tax Assets 9 1,103,521                             404,692                              
Total Non- Current Assets 220,386,758                          121,083,252                        

Current Assets
(a) Inventories 10 12,232                                  13,900                                
(b) Financial Assets
       (i) Trade Receivable 11 15,518,456                           12,823,808                         
       (ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 100,454,491                         121,653,349                       
       (iii) Other Financial Assets 13 12,114,697                           8,245,786                           
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 14 3,436,562                             2,675,516                           
(d) Other Current Assets 15 11,169,877                           7,415,764                           
Total Current Assets 142,706,314                          152,828,122                        
TOTAL ASSETS 363,093,072                          273,911,374                        

EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capital 16 176,000,000                         176,000,000                       
(b) Reserve & Surplus 17 98,703,120                           47,981,454                         
Total Equity 274,703,120                          223,981,454                        

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
      (i) Security Deposit 18 1,885,276                             1,150,069                           
      (ii) Lease Liabilities 29,809,338                           -                                     
(b) Provisions 19 11,833,496                           11,996,172                         
Total Non-Current Liabilities 43,528,110                            13,146,242                          

Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
      (i) Trade Payables 20 9,338,136                             7,974,968                           
      (ii) Lease Liabilities 2,867,455                             -                                       
      (iii) Other Financial Liabilities 21 7,874,901                             6,122,412                           
(b) Provisions 415,010                                435,742                              
(c) Other Liabilities 21(A) 24,366,340                           22,250,556                         
Total Current Liabilities 44,861,842                            36,783,678                          

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 363,093,072                          273,911,374                        

Sanjib Subba Robin Nepal Anil Joshi
Chief Executive Officer             Chairman Director

Bishwambhar Neupane Sanjeeb Kumar Shrestha Niraj Sharma
Director Director Director

Suresh Raj Maharjan Bal Krishna Joshi Rajkumar Khadka Date: 2022/10/17
Director Director Chief Finance Officer Place: Kathmandu

CA. Nil Bahadur Saru Magar, FCA
Managing Partner

N. B. S. M. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

As per our report of even date

Notes

NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Ashad 32, 2079 Ashad 31, 2078

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Figures in NPR)

Income
Revenue From Operations 22 221,390,589                        163,085,446                   
Other Income 23 16,074,953                          10,513,917                      
Total Income 237,465,542                        173,599,364                    
Expenses
Operating Expenses 24 61,738,788                          43,976,554                      
Employee Benefit Expenses 25 60,034,352                          46,819,524                      
Finance Cost-Lease Liability 26 2,865,693                            -                                  
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 3.2 & 4.2 28,865,002                          18,164,878                      
Depreciation on Right Of Use Asset 4.3 5,538,465                            -                                  
Other Expenses 27 9,612,064                            11,911,855                      
Foreign Exchange Loss 28 472,462                               107,047                          
Total Expenses 169,126,825                        120,979,858                    

Profit Before  Tax 68,338,716                          52,619,506                      
Tax Expenses: 30
Current Tax (Expenses)/Income (17,164,815)                         (12,847,010)                     
Deferred Tax (Expenses)/Income 698,829                               3,129,309                        
Profit For the Year 51,872,731                          42,901,805                      

Earnings Per Equity Share of Rs 100 Each
Basic Earning Per Share (Rs) 31 29.47                                   24.38                               
Diluted Earning Per Share (Rs) 29.47                                   24.38                               

As per our report of even date

Sanjib Subba Robin Nepal Anil Joshi
Chief Executive Officer             Chairman Director

Bishwambhar Neupane Sanjeeb Kumar Shrestha Niraj Sharma
Director Director Director

Suresh Raj Maharjan Bal Krishna Joshi Rajkumar Khadka Date: 2022/10/17
Director Director Chief Finance Officer Place: Kathmandu

Managing Partner
N. B. S. M. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For The Year Ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Notes

CA. Nil Bahadur Saru Magar, FCA

Ashad 32, 2079 Ashad 31, 2078
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(Figures in NPR)
Ashad 32, 2079 Ashad 31, 2078

Profit for the year  51,872,731                 42,901,805                      

Gains /(losses) on re-measuring available for sale financial assets -                            -                                 
Gain/(loss) on Actuarial valuation of defined benefit liability -                            -                                 

Total other comprehensive income -                              -                                   

Deferred tax income /(expense) 
relating to components of other comprehensive income

-                            -                                 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax -                              -                                   

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 51,872,731                 42,901,805                      

As per our report of even date

Sanjib Subba                                    Robin Nepal Anil Joshi
Chief Executive Officer                         Chairman Director

Bishwambhar Neupane              Sanjeeb Kumar Shrestha Niraj Sharma
Director                                                   Director Director

Suresh Raj Maharjan                       Bal Krishna Joshi Rajkumar Khadka Date: 2022/10/17
Director                                                   Director Chief Finance Officer Place: Kathmandu

Chartered Accountants

CA. Nil Bahadur Saru Magar, FCA

NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For Year Ended On Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Managing Partner
N. B. S. M. & Associates

54 |www.neps.com.np



ANNUAL REPORT 2078-79

60 |www.neps.com.np

(Figures in NPR)
Particulars Ashad 32, 2079 Ashad 31, 2078
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax 68,338,716                      52,619,506                          
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & Amortization 34,403,466                     18,164,878                         
Net Unrealized Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss) (89,716)                          -                                     
(Profit)/loss on sale of Property Plant & Equipment 17,217                           (336,979)                             
Interest Income- Investment (10,894,113)                    (5,529,482)                          
Interest Expense on Lease Liability 2,865,693                       -                                     
Operating Profit before changes in working capital 94,641,263                      64,917,923                          
Movement in Working Capital
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory 1,668                             (7,494)                                
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable (2,694,648)                      (697,738)                             
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets (3,868,911)                      (6,082,095)                          
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets (4,515,159)                      2,266,502                           
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payable 1,452,884                       5,264,233                           
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 1,752,489                       5,215,033                           
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities 2,095,052                       (13,289,359)                        
Cash generated from Operations 88,864,638                      57,587,005                          
Adjustments for: -                                 -                                       
Current Year Tax (17,164,815)                    
Retained Earning -                                 -                                     
Cash Flows From Operating Activities (A) 71,699,823                      57,587,005                          

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of Plants, Property & Equipments (23,856,075)                    (7,472,616)                          
Purchase of Intangible Assets (1,803,004)                      -                                     
Increase in Intangible Assets-WIP -                                 (4,761,647)                          
Investment in Fixed Deposits (70,000,000)                    -                                     
Proceeds from sale of Plant, Property & Equipments 731,000                         1,255,522                           
Interest Income Received 10,894,113                     5,529,482                           
Payment of Security Deposit (1,595,317)                      -                                     
Receipt of Security Deposit 735,206                         -                                     
Provision For Employee Benefit (162,676)                        -                                     
Cash Flows From Investing Activities (B) (85,056,753)                     (5,449,259)                           

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of Share Capital -                                 -                                     
Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Loans -                                 -                                     
Dividend Paid -                                 -                                     
Lease Payment-Liability (4,976,235)                      
Lease Payment-Finance Cost (2,865,693)                      
Cash Flows From Financing Activities (C) (7,841,928)                       -                                       

Net Cash & Cash Equivalent for the year (A+B+C) (21,198,858)                     52,137,746                          
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 121,653,349                   69,515,602                         
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 100,454,491                    121,653,349                        

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash on Hand 2,445                             4,686                                 
Balance with Banks

In Current Accounts 20,452,046                     21,648,663                         
In FD Deposit Accounts with Original Maturity for Less than 3 Months 80,000,000                     100,000,000                       

Total Cash & Cash Equivalent Considered for Cash Flows 100,454,491                    121,653,349                        

As per our report of even date

Sanjib Subba                                    Robin Nepal Anil Joshi
Chief Executive Officer                         Chairman Director

Bishwambhar Neupane           Sanjeeb Kumar Shrestha Niraj Sharma
Director                                                   Director Director

Suresh Raj Maharjan                       Bal Krishna Joshi Rajkumar Khadka Date: 2022/10/17
Director                                                   Director Chief Finance Officer Place: Kathmandu

NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED

Managing Partner
N. B. S. M. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

CA. Nil Bahadur Saru Magar, FCA

STATEMENT OF CASHFLOW
For The Year Ended On Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)
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(Figures in NPR)

 Share Capital  Retained Earnings  Actuarial reserve  Total Shareholders' Funds 

Balance as at July 15, 2020 176,000,000                 5,079,649                     -                         181,079,649                                
Changes in Accounting Policies -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Restated Balance as at July 15, 2020 176,000,000                 5,079,649                     -                         181,079,649                                

Net profit for the year -                               42,901,805                  -                         42,901,805                                 
Other comprehensive income -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Adjustments: -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Issue of new shares -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Calls in advance -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Bonus shares Issued -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Right Shares Issued -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Dividend Paid -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Adjustment for Prior Period -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Transfer to Other Reserves
Share Premium -                               -                               -                         -                                              
    Other Reserves -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Other Adjustments -                               -                         
Balance as at July 15, 2021 176,000,000                 47,981,454                   -                         223,981,454                                
Adjustment for NFRS 16 -                               (1,151,065)                   (1,151,065)                                  
Adjusted Balance as at July 15, 2021 176,000,000                 46,830,389                   -                         222,830,389                                
Net profit for the year -                               51,872,731                  -                         51,872,731                                 
Other comprehensive income -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Adjustment -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Issue of new shares -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Calls in advance -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Bonus shares Issued -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Right Shares Issued -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Dividend Paid -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Adjustment for Prior Period -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Transfer to Other Reserves -                                              
Share Premium -                               -                               -                         -                                              
    Other Reserves -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Other Adjustments -                                              
Adjustments -                               -                               -                         -                                              
Balance as at July 16, 2022 176,000,000                 98,703,120                   -                         274,703,120                                

As per our report of even date

Sanjib Subba                                                  Robin Nepal Anil Joshi CA. Nil Bahadur Saru Magar, FCA
Chief Executive Officer                                    Chairman Director Managing Partner

N. B. S. M. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Bishwambhar Neupane                    Sanjeeb Kumar Shrestha Niraj Sharma
Director                                                               Director Director

Suresh Raj Maharjan                           Bal Krishna Joshi Rajkumar Khadka Date: 2022/10/17
Director                                                           Director Chief Finance Officer Place: Kathmandu

NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For The Year Ended On Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)
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1

1.1

1.2 

1.3

2

2.1

2.1.1
The financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Board of Directors in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) and as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced by The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

NEPS obtained Payment System Operator (PSO)license from Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) on 29th Baisakh 2076 to provide
network for electronic cards and payment switch in Nepal.  

The financial statements have been prepared on Historical Cost Basis following the accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) of Nepal and
pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except otherwise stated.

Statement of Compliance

Basis of Preparation

Critical accounting judgment that the company has identified as having potentially material impact on the company’s
financial statements and significant accounting policies that relate to the financial statements are set out in this section.
Where an accounting policy is generally applicable to a specific note to accounts, the policy is described within that note.
The company’s accounting policies require management to exercise judgment in making accounting estimates and provisions.

NEPS operating as Payment System Operator (PSO) provides solution of issuance of cards, acquiring transactions through
different delivery channels, connectivity to different payment networks in the country as well as outside of Nepal along with
all the related settlement, operational and security aspects on the same. NEPS also ensures that its facility is complied with
the highest security standard as required by the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCIDSS) for card data
processing company and maintains a complete redundant system to ensure the highest level of up time.

Financial Statements

Financial Statements of NEPS for the year ended on 16th July, 2022 comprise of Statement of Financial Position, Statement
of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Notes
to the Financial Statements and Significant Accounting Policies.

Principal Activities and Operations

Principal activities of NEPS is to provide electronic payment processing services to its member banks & financial institutions
for delivering their Card and Digital Payment needs.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended On Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Background Information
Nepal Electronic Payment Systems Limited (hereinafter referred to as “NEPS” or “Company”) is a public limited company
domiciled in Nepal,in corporated under the provision of the Company Act 2063 and is registered in Office of Company
Registrar (OCR) on 18th Falgun 2069 with its registered address at Naxal, Kathmandu. Subsequently, NEPS was registered
in Inland Revenue Department on 29th Shrawan 2070. NEPS obtained the letter of commencement of business from OCR on
16th Mangsir 2071.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended On Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Board of Directors (BoD) are satisfied that the company has resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future.
Furthermore, BoD is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it. Therefore, the financial
statements are prepared on going concern basis.

2.1.2 Going Concern

2.1.3

Fair Value Measurement

Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are prepared in Nepalese Rupees, which is the company’s functional currency.

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement dates regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of assets and liability, the company takes in to account the
characteristics of assets or liability if market participants would take those characteristics in to account when pricing the
assets or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such basis except for lease transactions that are within the scope of NFRS 16. 

Assets and liabilities of NEPS presented in Statement of Financial Position are grouped in order of liquidity. Statement of
profit or loss has been prepared using classification ‘by nature’ method. Statement of cash flows has been prepared using
indirect method.  

Presentation of Financial Statements

Figures for previous years are rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary for the purpose of facilitating comparison.
Appropriate disclosures are made where necessary. 

Basis of Measurement
Financial Statements of NEPS have been prepared on historical cost convention, as modified by fair value measurement of
financial assets and liabilities wherever the standard requires or provides options for such measurements. 

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Nonmonetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing
at the date when the fair value was determined. 

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for
exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which
are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency
borrowings. During the Year NEPS does not have any foreign currency borrowings.

Foreign currency transactions

2.1.5

2.1.4
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NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended On Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

2.1.6

2.1.7

Materiality and Aggregation
In compliance with Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 01 (Presentation of Financial Statements), each material class of item is
presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or functions are presented separately unless they
are immaterial. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of
Financial Position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset such recognized amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in
Statement of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted by the Financial Reporting Standards.

Approval for Financial Statements
Accompanied financial statements are prepared under the responsibility of the management and authorized for issue by the
Board of Directors on its meeting held on 15-September 2022 with necessary recommendation for approval by the
shareholders in the upcoming Annual General Meeting.

2.2

2.3

Specific accounting policies have been included in the specific section of the notes for each item of the financial statements
which require disclosures of accounting policies or changes in accounting policies. Effect and nature of changes have been
also disclosed where necessary. 

Significant Accounting Policies

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions
Preparation of financial statements in line with NFRS requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses of the reporting period. 

Management has applied estimations in preparation and presentation of the financial statements. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised, if the revision affects only that period; they are recognized in the period of revision and the future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Specific accounting estimates have been included in the relevant section of notes wherever the estimates have been applied
along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any. 

NFRS requires adoption of accounting policies that are most appropriate to the company’s circumstances & operations.
Directors and management are required to make judgment in respect of items where choice of specific policy, accounting
estimate or assumptions to be followed could materially affect the company’s reported financial position, performance or
cash flows.
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4

4.1 Accounting Policy
Basis of recognition & Measurement

Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation

Asset Class Useful Life Depreciation 
Method

Expected Residual Value

Furniture & Fixtures 5 Yrs. Straight-line method 10%

Electrical Equipment 5 Yrs. Straight-line method 0%

Firewall & Network Security 5 Yrs. Straight-line method 0%

Computers & Accessories 4 Yrs. Straight-line method 5%

Computers: Servers 5 Yrs. Straight-line method 5%

Other Office Equipment 5 Yrs. Straight-line method 5%

Vehicles 7 Yrs. Straight-line method 20%

Leasehold Improvements 5 Yrs. Straight-line method 0%

NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended on Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are tangible items that are held for servicing or for administrative purposes and
are expected to be used for more than a year. Property, plant and equipment includes computer hardware, office
equipment, furniture and fittings and motor vehicles.

Depreciation is provided on items of property, plant and equipment so as to write-off their carrying value over the
expected useful economic lives. Depreciation charge begins when an asset is available for use. Depreciation has been
computed on Straight Line Method. Estimated useful lives for the assets are as follows:

Items of property, plant and equipment's are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price and other
directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable costs of dismantling and
removing items. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as a
part of hardware equipment.

Measurement at Recognition:

Repairs and maintenance related to property, plant & equipment are charged to the statement of profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment's are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the company and cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
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De-recognition

5 Leasing
The Company as a Lessee:

6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible Assets Acquired Separately
Intangible Assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses if any. The amortization is recognized on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period with
the effects of any changes estimated being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising from the de-recognition of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and carrying
amount of property plant and equipment and is included in the statement of profit or loss when the item is de-
recognized. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment
testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on
an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from
other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the
asset belongs.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Office Premises. The Company assesses whether a
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The right-of-use assets and
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing
rates in the country of domicile . The lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise
Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments) payable during the lease term.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any
lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 
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6.1 Accounting Policy

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Assets Useful life
Computer Software 5 Years

6.2 Details of Intangible Assets

(Figures in NPR)
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

115,682,151         115,682,151                 
65,075,000           -                               

-                       -                               
180,757,151         115,682,151                  

101,847,526         96,796,225                   
17,798,990           5,051,301                     

-                       -                               
119,646,516         101,847,526                  
61,110,636           13,834,625                    

Purchased intangible assets are capitalized considering the costs incurred to acquire and other eligible cost expensed
in order to bring the intangible assets in use. Intangible assets consists of software's used for core-business operations,
application programming interface and other accounting and attendance and licenses.

An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the company and cost of asset can be measured reliably. An intangible asset is initially measured at cost.
During the fiscal Year 2078.79, Rs 6,32,71,995.94 has been recognized in Intangible Assets considering the
recognition criteria and transferred from Intangible Assets-WIP( Smart Vista System).

An Intangible assets is derecognized upon disposal or no future economic benefits are expected to arise from use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible assets measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the
assets is derecognized.

Cost of purchased licenses and all computer software costs incurred, licensed for use by NEPS, which are not integrated
to associated hardware and can be clearly identified, reliably measured, and it is probable that they will lead to
future economic benefits, are included in Statement of Financial Position under the category ‘Intangible assets’ and
carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Costs associated with maintaining software
are recognized as an expense as incurred.

Net carrying amount of intangible assets pertains to unamortized portion of various software's, license, and other
intangible assets. Details of which are given below:

The estimated useful life of Intangible Assets  are as Follows

Amortization is charged to the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets.

Amortization period and method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and they
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. 

Cost:
At beginning of Year

Carrying value at year end
At end of Year

Accumulated Amortization
At beginning of Year
Additions
Disposals

Additions
Disposals
At end of Year
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7 Details of Intangible Assets - WIP

(Figures in NPR)
Intangible Assets-WIP FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Smart Visa System -                       63,271,996                   
Card Personalization System 4,761,647             4,761,647                     

4,761,647             68,033,643                    

4-6(A) Impairment

Intangible Assets - WIP includes payments made to Expanded Payment International for development of card
personalization system. There has not been any subsequent payment to Expanded Payment International in this year.
So, the same amount has been carried forward as Work in Progress (WIP). 

At the end of Each Reporting Period, the company reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the
recoverable amount of cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment review is performed whenever there is an indication of impairment. When recoverable amount is less
than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Future servicing rights are
also considered in establishing an onerous contract provision for each reporting period. There is no indications of
impairment, consequently impairment has not been provided for by Nepal Electronic Payment Systems Limited.

Carrying value at year end
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8 Financial Instruments – Financial Assets

8.1

8.2

8.2.1

a. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended on Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Classification of financial instruments at the initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and
management’s intention in acquiring them. All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to acquisition or issue of such financial instruments except in the case of such financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as per the Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 39 (Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement). Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are dealt with the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Classification of Financial Assets

 NEPS designates financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the following circumstances:

a) Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise
from measuring the assets.

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e. the date that NEPS becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes ‘regular way trades’. Regular way trade means purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Recognition and Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments

d. Loans and Receivables

(ii)  Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

i. Financial assets held for trading
ii. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification.  

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
A financial asset is classified as fair value through profit or loss if it is held for trading or is designated at fair value through
profit or loss.
(i)  Financial Assets Held for Trading
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term or holds as a part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit or position taking. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Nepal Accounting Standards  NAS 39  (Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement).

Financial assets held for trading are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognized in ‘Other operating income’. NEPS does not have any financial assets held for trading as on the reporting date. 

NEPS evaluates its held for trading asset portfolio, other than derivatives, to determine whether the intention to sell them in
the near future is still appropriate. When NEPS is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intention to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly changes, NEPS may elect to reclassify these
financial assets.

Financial assets held for trading include instruments such as government securities and equity instruments that have been
acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. 

b. Held to Maturity Financial Assets
c. Financial assets available for sale
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NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended on Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

8.2.2

8.2.3

(Figures in NPR)
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Investment on Fixed Deposit (1 Year Term) 70,000,000            -                              

             70,000,000                                  -   

Instruments with maturity period of more than 3 months from the date are classified under this category. Interest rate is
different from deposit in one bank to another and depends on the commencement of the deposit agreement. All other
instruments are classifed as cash and Cash Equivalent as on Ashad end 2079. 

Held to Maturity Financial Assets

Instruments with maturity of less than 3 months have been classified under cash and cash equivalent. 

Held to Maturity Financial Assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities which NEPS has the intention and ability to hold to maturity. These financial asset are primarily held for collecting
cash flows of the instruments both principal and interest and are primarily intended to be held till maturity. 

b) The assets are part of a group of Financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy.

c) The asset contains one or more embedded derivatives that significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise have
been required under the contract.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘Other operating income’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Interest earned is
accrued under ‘Investment Income’, using the effective interest rate method, while dividend income is recorded under
‘Investment Income’ when the right to receive the payment has been established.

NEPS has not designated any financial assets upon initial recognition as designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial Assets Available for Sale
Available for sale financial assets include equity and debt securities. Equity Investments classified as ‘Available for Sale’

are those which are neither classified as ‘Held for Trading’ nor ‘Designated at fair value through profit or loss’. Debt
securities in this category are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.  

After initial measurement, available for sale financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealized gains
and losses are recognized directly in equity through ‘Other comprehensive income / expense’ in the ‘Available for sale
reserve’. When the investment is disposed off, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity is recognized in
the Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Other operating income’. Where NEPS holds more than one investment in the same
security, they are deemed to be disposed off on a first-in-first-out basis. Interest earned whilst holding ‘Available for sale
financial investments’ is reported as ‘Investment income’ using the effective interest rate. Dividend earned whilst holding
‘Available for sale financial investments’ are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss as ‘Investment Income’ when the
right to receive the payment has been established. Losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognized in the
Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Impairment charge for loans and other losses’ and removed from the ‘Available for sale
reserve’.

NEPS does not have any financial assets available for sale

54 |www.neps.com.np



ANNUAL REPORT 2078-79

73 |www.neps.com.np

NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended on Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

8.2.4

(Figures in NPR)
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Security Deposit 3,602,747              2,007,430                   
               3,602,747                     2,007,430 

9 Deferred tax 

Particulars Carrying 
Amount

Tax Base Temporary Diff 

 Property, Plant & Equipment/ Intangible Assets      109,955,344           108,902,993                    1,052,351 
 Provisions for Other Long term Employee Benefit          3,663,426                           -                     (3,663,426)
 Right of Use Assets        30,963,499                           -                    30,963,499 
 Lease Liabilities        32,676,793                           -                   (32,676,793)
 Currency Revaluation on FCY denominated Liability                89,716                           -                         (89,716)

                  (4,414,085)
                  (1,103,521)

Presentation of Current and Deferred Tax

 Total 
 Deferred Tax Asset/Liability as at 32.03.2079 (Tax Rate @ 25%) 

Financial Assets-Non Current

(1) Those that NEPS intends to sell immediately or in the near term and those that NEPS, upon initial recognition, designates
as fair value through profit or loss.

(2) Those that NEPS, upon initial recognition, designates as available for sale
(3) Those for which NEPS may not recover substantially all of its initial investment through contractual cash flows, other than
because of credit deterioration.

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate, less allowance for impairment. Amortization is included in ‘Investment Income’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Losses
arising from impairment are recognized in ‘Other operating expenses’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Other financial assets include financial assets other than cash and cash equivalent, available for sale financial assets, held
for trading financial asset and held to maturity financial assets:

Other financial Assets include non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit under the Income Tax Act, 2058.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognized for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been prevailing at the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflect the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended on Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

10 Inventory

(Figures in NPR)
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Inventory 12,232                  13,900                       
12,232                   13,900                        

Inventory of NEPS consists of envelops used for packaging printed pin numbers of ATM cards. 

Inventories are initially recognized at cost, and subsequently at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Net realizable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the variable selling expenses.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in
Other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities,
where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
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NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended on Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

(Figures in NPR)
11 Other Financial Assets-Current FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Trade Receivables 15,518,456            12,823,808                 

             15,518,456                   12,823,808 
12 Cash and cash equivalents

(Figures in NPR)
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Cash in Hand 2,445                    4,686                         
Bank balance 20,452,046            21,648,663                 
Short term deposits(Upto 3 Months) 80,000,000            100,000,000               

100,454,491          121,653,349               

(Figures in NPR)
13 Other Financial Assets-Current FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Accrued Income Receivables 12,114,697            8,198,675                   
Advance to Staff -                        47,111                       

12,114,697            8,245,786                   

14 Income Taxes
Income Tax Expense repesents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current Tax

(Figures in NPR)
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Advance Taxes 20,601,377                             15,522,525 
Current tax liability (17,164,815)           (12,847,010)                

3,436,562              2,675,516                   

Current tax assets includes Advane Tax Paid, TDS receivables deducted by member banks on payments to service fee billed
by NEPS and TDS on Investment Income due to statutory and regulatory requirements. Details of Advance Taxes and tax
liability is given below:

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income is recognized in equity or
other comprehensive income and not in the statement of profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of cash credit balances and bank overdrafts (if any) as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s
cash management.

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of taxable profit for the year. Taxable Profit differes from
profit before tax as reported in the statement of Profit or Loss because of items of incomes or expenses that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible under the Income Tax Act 2058. The current tax is
calculated using tax rate that is prevailing at the end of reporting period.
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NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended on Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

(Figures in NPR)
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Prepaid Expenses 10,577,398            7,176,758                   
VAT Receivables 592,479                239,006                     

11,169,877            7,415,764                   

Other assets consist non-financial assets which are recognized at cost less any impairment loss. Prepaid Expenses as well as
prepayments to vendors for goods or services are included under non financial assets as they are associated with the
receipt of goods or services and does not give rise to a present right to receive cash or any other financial asset.

15 Other Current Assets

16 Share Capital

(Figures in NPR)
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Authorized Share Capital
(2,500,000 shares @ Rs. 100 each) 250,000,000       250,000,000        
Issued Share Capital
(2,000,000 shares @ Rs. 100 each) 200,000,000       200,000,000        

Paid Up Share Capital

As at 1st Shrawan, 2078 176,000,000       176,000,000        
Add: Issued to new shareholder -                      -                       
As at 32 Ashad , 2079 176,000,000       176,000,000         

16.1 Reconciliation of Number of Shares

Ordinary Shares as at Shrawan 1-2078 1,760,000           1,760,000            
Add: Issued to new shareholder -                      -                      
Ordinary Shares as at Ashad 32-2079 1,760,000            1,760,000             

17 Reserve & Surplus

(Figures in NPR)
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

General Reserves
Retained Earnings 98,703,120         47,981,454          
Total 98,703,120         47,981,454           

Reserve and surplus includes retained earnings 

Financial instruments issued by NEPS are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not meet the
definition of a financial liability or financial asset. The company’s equity shares are classified as equity
instruments:
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18 Other Financial Liabilities-Non Current

(Figures in NPR)
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Security Deposits Payables 1,885,276         1,150,069             
1,885,276         1,150,069             

Borrowings

Employee Benefit:

19 Provisions

Provision for Gratuity

NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended on Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Other Financial Liabilities include financial liabilities of the company other than normal classification of financial liability at
amortized cost and financial liability at fair value through profit or loss:

Other Provisions include Other Long Term Employee Benefit at the end of the year.

NEPS has not taken any borrowings, secured or unsecured loans during the year.

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, NEPS has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Amount
recognized is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation at that date. Where a provision is measured using cash
flows estimated to settle present obligation, its carrying amount is determined based on the present value of those
cashflows. A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when expected benefits to be derived by the company from a
contract are lower than unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. Provision is measured as the present
value of lower of expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing the contract.

Leave encashment liability is determined as per actuarial valuation. Actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about
discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases and mortality rates. Plan assets have not been
created for funding of payment of leave liability.

NEPS deposits 8.33% of basic salary of its employees in individual accounts maintained at Citizen Investment Trust (CIT).
So, the company has no further payment obligation once the payment has been deposited. Hence, Payment to gratuity is
recognized as an expense when employees have rendered the service entitling them to gratuity and corresponding
payment has been made.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Defined contribution plans: 
The Company contributes 10% of Basic Salary & Grade towards Employee Provident fund to all eligible employees. The
Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. Hence payments to defined
contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Provision for Other Long Term Employee Benefit (Leave)
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NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended on Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

 FY 2078-79  FY 2077-78 
9% 9%
8% 8%

-                                            -   
8.21 9.03

For The period  FY 2078-79  FY 2077-78 
Opening Liability 3,846,834                      3,215,129 
Interest Expenses 232,232                            246,112 
Current Service Costs 1,341,910                         893,553 
Benefits Paid (2,532,946)                       (961,093)

775,396                            453,133 
Closing Liability 3,663,426                       3,846,834 

Sensitivity Analysis

Discount Rate Liability
8%          3,923,302 
10%          3,435,983 

Discount Rate Liability
7%          3,445,234 
9%          3,908,511 

Provision For Bank Claims

Due to complexity of valuation, underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at the end of each reporting date. Value of liability
at the end of reporting period is as follows:

Discount rate
Rate of increase in compensation levels
Expected rate of return on plan assets
Expected average remaining working lives of employees

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

Remeasurements on obligation - (Gain) / Loss

Impact of change in Discount rate when base assumption is decreased/increased by 100 basis point. 

Impact of change in Salary Increase rate when base assumption is decreased/increased by 100 basis point

There were withdrawals of money using ATM cards of NEPS' member banks in ATM terminals of various banks in Nepal
and India through VISA network during the fiscal year 2076/77 and provision has been made for possible liability relating
to those withdrawals.

There were withdrawals of money using ATM cards of NEPS' member banks in ATM terminals of various banks in Nepal
and India through VISA network during the fiscal year 2076/77 and NEPS has recognized provision and the effect has
been given in financial statements. While reviewing the provision reasonable care has been given for the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date. Provision has been assessed by collecting &
analyzing claim confirmation letters from the concerned banks, Legal Status of ongoing case, consideration on best possible
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the claim for unauthorized withdrawals in India. Whereas for unauthorized
withdrawals in Nepal, the legal case is going on with the detention of accused. So, no provision has been made for
unauthorized withdrawals in Nepal. After reviewing the current status of court case, correspondence with the concerned
banks and estimates of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation, management has decided to continue the
same amount of provision as on reporting date for the FY 2078.79.
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NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended on Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Provision for Long Term Employee Benefit-Non Current 3,248,416         3,411,092             
Provision for Bank Claims-Non  Current 8,585,080         8,585,080             

11,833,496       11,996,172           

Provision-Current Liabilities
Provision for Long Term Employee Benefit-Current 415,010            435,742                

415,010            435,742                

Provisions includes:
(Figures in NPR)

Provision- Non-Current Liabilities FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

(Figures in NPR)
20 Financial Liabilities-Current FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Sundry Creditors & Other Payables 9,338,136         7,974,968             
9,338,136         7,974,968             

21 Other Financial Liabilities-Current (Figures in NPR)
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Audit Fees Payables-Internal 65,010              59,100                  
Audit Fees Payables-External 216,700            216,700                
Staff Bonus Payable 7,593,191         5,846,612             

7,874,901         6,122,412             
21(A) Other Liabilities

(Figures in NPR)
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
22,480,270       21,017,578           

TDS & Reverse Vat Payables 1,886,070         1,232,978             
24,366,340       22,250,556           

Other liabilities are related to the obligation amount recognised at actual obligation and pertain to administrative and
government dues. All amounts are recognised at amount at which liability is expected to be settled. 

Card Management Fees received in advance
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22 Revenue from fees

(Figures in NPR)
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

3D Secure Enablement Fee 6,518,686                                3,664,516 
Acquiring Fees: ATM 38,342,529                            23,576,083 
Acquiring Fees: POS 17,253,744                            12,256,944 
ATM Mgmt. & Monitoring  Fees 2,046,485                                2,023,290 
Card Management Fees 68,727,535                            64,193,760 
Contactless Card Personalization fee 2,261,645                                2,237,571 
EMV Card Personalization 5,687,376                                4,470,352 
Issuing Fee: ATM 45,613,395                            28,507,283 
Issuing Fee: POS 19,136,925                            11,483,099 
Pin Mailer Printing Fees 4,810,892                                3,711,272 
Moco Application (Integration) Fee 400,000                                                -   
Accrual Income 10,591,377                              6,961,277 

221,390,589             163,085,446             

23 Other Income
23.1 Interest income

(Figures in NPR)
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Interest Income 10,894,113              5,529,482                
10,894,113               5,529,482                 

23.2 Other operating income

(Figures in NPR)
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Miscellaneous Income 5,180,839                4,984,436                
5,180,839                 4,984,436                 

NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended On Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

As per NAS 18, Revenue should be recognized when an entity transfers goods to a customer or as the entity
performs the service. Revenue received/receivable have been recognized on accrual basis as per NAS 18.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to NEPS and revenue
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at fair value of consideration received or receivable
exclusive of indirect taxes and discount. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognized.

Revenue of NEPS includes all revenue from core-business activities of the company and are recorded net of
value added tax and other taxes collected from customers that are remitted or are to be remitted to
government authorities.

Interest income includes interest income from fixed deposits and call accounts:

Other operating income includes income from tender forms distribution and other miscellaneous incomes
including incentives from Visa and disposal of fixed assets.
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NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended On Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

24 Operating Expenses

(Figures in NPR)
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

3D Secure implementation expenses -                           210,582                   
3D Secure Monthly Fees 2,194,676                1,398,693                
Annual Maintenance Expenses 18,878,681              18,310,242              
Anti Virus Software & License 118,873                   126,289                   
Colocation Charge - DC 2,813,600                2,880,000                
Colocation Charge Master Card 660,000                   660,000                   
Colocation Charge - DR 1,132,000                1,152,000                
Data Discovery Tools- License  Fee 11,583                     -                           
CTMS Services -                           1,167,742                
Fortinet -  Fortigate 100D UTM 369,704                   336,465                   
Fortinet Fortigate 200F Unified Threat Protection 25,023                     -                           
Fortinet Fortigate 201E Unified Protection 1,367,635                -                           
Fortinet -  Fortigate 200D UTM -                           1,212,469                
Fortinet -  Fortigate  60D UTM 112,875                   101,515                   
Gemal Two Factor Software License 220,646                   317,979                   
Implementation Charge -ACS2.2 3,504,118                -                           
Implementation Fee - Green Pin at POS 1,794,494                -                           
Implementation Fee-VAT Refund 6,782,118                -                           
Issuer Script Support Fee 1,049,647                -                           
MasterCard Simulator Monthly Charge 1,326,457                1,038,925                
Microsoft 365 E3 562,787                   758,796                   
Migration and Support Charge -                           18,252                     
Mobile Token Monthly Charges 514,818                   498,500                   
Moreal Service Monthly Charges -                           674,826                   
Office  365 Advance Threat Protection 859,208                   901,202                   
Network Connectivity Expenses 380,400                   396,000                   
Office  365 Advance Threat Protection 64,282                     63,014                     
Office 365 Business Essential 142,521                   103,104                   
PCI DSS Audit Fee 750,688                   849,857                   
PCI PIN Security - Fee 588,634                   475,871                   
Penetration Testing Fees -                           247,500                   
Pin Printing Expenses 23,908                     42,546                     
Settlement and Mgmt Charge 1,000,000                1,000,000                
SOC - Monitoring Expenses 2,624,255                1,517,926                
VAPT - Expenses 1,939,735                954,028                   
VIBS-Visa Expense 466,125                   -                           
VISA Connectivity Expenses 9,161,710                5,660,690                
Visa Edit Package 284,088                   888,041                   
Web Hosting Expenses 13,500                     13,500                     

61,738,788               43,976,554               

Operating Expenses include costs that are related to operations of the company. This is normally related to
costs incurred in generation of revenue. 
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NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended On Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

25 Staff Expenses

(Figures in NPR)
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Salary & Allowances 48,436,631              37,810,715              
Staff Bonus Expenses 7,593,191                5,846,612                
Gratuity Expenses 1,654,992                1,414,217                
Leave  Expenses 2,349,538                1,747,981                

60,034,352               46,819,524               

(Figures in NPR)
26 Finance Cost-Lease Liability FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Finance Cost-Lease Liability 2,865,693                -                           
2,865,693                 -                            

27 Other Expenses

(Figures in NPR)
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Accommodation Charge 151,350                   106,500                   
Actuary Fees 30,000                     30,000                     
Advertisement Expenses 134,467                   189,398                   
AGM Expenses 379,496                   35,808                     
AMC Expenses 214,820                   209,670                   
Amenities Expenses 283,289                   112,377                   
Anniversary Expenses 305,376                   211,484                   
Audit Fee Internal 132,000                   120,000                   
Audit Fee External 220,000                   220,000                   
Bank Charge 60,528                     41,469                     

Other expenses include general administrative and office expenses. Other expenses are recognized on
accrual basis. All expenditures incurred in running of business and maintaining property, plant and
equipment are charged to the statement of profit or loss:

Employee benefits accounted under staff expenses are the remuneration such as salary and allowances and
benefits such as shift allowance, overtime allowance and holiday allowance availed to staff as per
Employee Service Rule, and prevailing Labor Act/Bylaw. Festival Allowance is one month’s salary provided
to the eligible employees. Provident Fund contributory scheme are accounted on monthly basis to the
retirement fund equal to 10% of the basic salary of eligible employees due to its nature of being a defined
contribution plan. Such expenses are charged directly to Statement of Profit and Loss. Staff Bonus is
computed at 10% of the Profit before Tax as per Bonus Act, 2030. 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. NEPS
recognizes changes in defined benefit obligation under staff expenses in statement of profit or loss. As on
date, company has a non funded plan for leave encashment. Obligation for leave encashment has been
assessed from Actuary Expert.
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NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended On Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Board Meeting Allowance 254,000                   202,000                   
Committee Meeting Allowance 50,000                     40,000                     
Common Area Maintenance Fee 545,604                   -                           
Claim & Settlement -                           36,817                     
Consultancy Expenses 927,419                   57,059                     
Consumable Electric Goods 20,086                     14,750                     
Covid 19 Related Expenses 36,000                     49,998                     
Conveyance Expenses 105                          -                           
Digital Business Consulting Fee -                           720,000                   
Electricity Expenses 853,963                   879,228                   
Email Hosting Expenses 107,332                   138,810                   
Fuel Expenses 263,982                   164,228                   
General Computer Accessories 59,498                     30,863                     
General Office Expenses 376,755                   159,880                   
Insurance Expenses - Office Assets 245,248                   268,380                   
Insurance Expenses - Staffs 443,850                   321,035                   
Internet Expenses 700,794                   736,786                   
IS-Audit Fee 40,000                     195,000                   
ISO-27001:2013 Certification Fee 250,000                   -                           
Janitorial Expenses 31,212                     81,038                     
Legal Expenses 425,750                   171,250                   
Locker Expenses 3,000                       3,000                       
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 173,305                   30,371                     
Newspaper & Magazines 5,095                       5,421                       
Office Moving 48,000                     -                           
Office Rent -                           4,451,393                
Postage Expenses 31,922                     18,828                     
Printing & Stationery Expenses 54,990                     82,357                     
Recruitment Fee 119,395                   -                           
Registration & Renewal Expenses 52,700                     52,455                     
Repair and Maintenance - Office Operation 178,139                   140,528                   
Repair and Maintenance Office Vechicle 33,823                     9,715                       
Repair and Maintenance Plumbing 2,240                       -                           
Repair and Maintenance Telephone Line 1,400                       3,153                       
Security Expenses 28,000                     330,494                   
Stationary Expenses 69,999                     47,440                     
TADA Expense 43,200                     308,909                   
Tea & Coffee Expenses 88,121                     66,964                     
Telephone Expenses 155,304                   171,814                   
Training Expenses 560,301                   323,730                   
Transportation Expenses 17,000                     36,500                     
Travelling Expenses 343,205                   224,956                   
Website Development Expenses 60,000                     60,000                     

9,612,064                 11,911,855               
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NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended On Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

28 Foreign currency gain/(loss)

29 Finance Cost

30 Income Tax Expense

31 Earning Per Share

(Figures in NPR)
Particular FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (a) 51,872,731                            42,901,805 
Weighted average of number of equity shares used in
computing basic earnings per share (b)

1,760,000                                1,760,000 

Basic and diluted earnings per equity share of Rs 100 each
(a/b)

29.47                                                   24 

32 Risk Management
Effective risk management is fundamental to any of the business activities. The company is exposed to
various risks particular to nature of activities it carries. The company's objective of managing risks is for the
protection and creation of shareholders and investors value. The Company's Board and senior management
has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange at the statement of financial position date.

As there is no potential ordinary shares that would dilute current earning of equity holders, basic EPS and
diluted EPS are equal for the period presented.

Income tax expense includes tax expenses on income of the company and any deferred tax expenses
arising due to taxable temporary differences. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in statement of
profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its equity shares. Basic earnings per
share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year. Diluted earnings per share is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which includes all stock options
granted to employees if any.

NEPS does not have borrowings, other interest bearing securities and finance lease during the fiscal year, so
there is no finance costs accrued in the year except for lease accounting under NFRS 16. 
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NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended On Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

32.1 Operational Risk

32.2 Credit Risk

32.3 Liquidity Risk

32.4 Other Risks

Operational risk is the risk of potential loss or service delay due to inadequate internal controls, human
errors and external events. NEPS is exposed to operational risk arising from uncertainty of inherent nature of
its business. Information Security: Part of the operational risk, it is the potential loss arising due to compromise
of confidentiality, integrity and availability of information assets.

The company provides reasonable level of credit facilities to debtors and so does it enjoy credit facility from
it creditors as well. Credit risk relate to the risks associated with systems in the form of unsettled transactions
and failure of settlement by any of its members. It also refers to the current or potential loss on NEPS’s
earning as a result of counterparties inability to meet with the financial or other contractual obligations to
NEPS when due. The company through its experience over the years has been managing such risk well
through proper way of close monitoring and supervising the regular recoverability position by the
management and the Board.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its
obligation in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

This includes various risks not included in the above key domains including reputational risks, vendor
dependencies, communication & member handlings, and similar. These are normally handled through defined
process and by assigning responsibility to specific resources.
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

33.1

Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) Amount (NPR) Relation

Remuneration & employee Benefit 11,574,441         
Salaries, Bonus and other short term employment benefits
Mr. Sanjib Subba 8,901,893           Chief Executive Officer
Mr.Prabin Acharya 2,188,900           Chief Operating Officer
Other benefits - retirement contributions From NePS 
Mr. Sanjib Subba 396,000              Chief Executive Officer
Mr.Prabin Acharya 87,648.00           Chief Operating Officer

33.2 Board members' allowances

Directors’ fees 304,000              Designation
Mr. Robin Nepal 54,000                Chairman 
Mr. Anil Joshi 35,000                Director
Mr. Bishwambhar Neupane 50,000                Director
Mr. Raghu Krishna Shrestha 35,000                Director
Mr.Sanjeeb Kumar Shrestha 45,000                Director
Mr. Suresh Raj Maharjan 55,000                Director
Mr. Bal Krishna Joshi 30,000                Director

33.3 Other Related Party Transactions

There were no transactions with the Board of Directors except meeting allowance paid for BOD & BOD Level
Committee Meeting.

NEPS is engaged in providing electronic payment processing services to its member banks and financial institutions.
Transactions entered with banks represented on the Board is provided below:

All related party transactions entered into during FY 2078.79 were on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary
course of business.

NEPAL ELECTRONIC PAYMENT SYSTEMS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended On Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

No transactions were made with Board Members except for payment of meeting allowance of total of NPR 3,04,000
related to Board Meetings, Audit Committee Meeting, HR Committee Meeting :

There were no transactions with the employees except allowed as per the Employee Service Rules of the company.

Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

In addition to their salaries and retirement contributions, NEPS also provides non-cash benefits to KMPs. CEO and
COO are re-imbrused for mobile expenses upto Rs. 3,000 per month and Rs. 1,500 per month respectively. 

Compensations paid to Key Management Personnel (which includes Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief
Operating Officer (COO)) during the fiscal year is presented below. Incase of COO, the joining date is
2078/07/22, so compensation from the date of joining to end of fiscal year has been presented here. In addition,
other non-monetary perquisites are provided to the Key Management Personnel as per the company’s Human
Resource Policy and employment terms and conditions:
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Name of bank Transaction 
amount (NPR)

Receivable Balance

Sunrise Bank Limited          28,235,801                                        -   
Global IME Bank Limited          31,142,715                                        -   
Machhapuchchre Bank Limited          29,521,087                              928,785 
Siddhartha Bank Limited          32,686,517                              493,352 
Citizens Bank International Limited          22,486,842 -                                     
Nepal Bangladesh Bank Limited            6,480,944                              453,054 

Name of bank Transaction 
amount (NPR)

Payable Balance

Sunrise Bank Limited-Visa Card Connectivity Charge            9,161,710                           2,805,107 
Sunrise Bank Limited-Settlement and Management Fee            1,000,000                                        -   

Name of bank Balance (NPR)
M/s Citizens Bank Intl Ltd            6,531,615 
M/s Machhapuchchhre Bank Ltd            1,482,679 
M/s Siddhartha Bank Ltd            2,504,913 
M/s Sunrise Bank Ltd            9,931,839 

34  TAX ASSESSMENT 

35  PROPOSED DIVIDEND & BONUS SHARE 

36  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS 

The Board of Directors of the company at its meeting held on 15-September,2022 have recommended 10% as Cash
Dividend (Rs 10/share totaling to Rs 176,00,000) inclusive of Tax for the reported year 2078-79. This proposal of
the board of directors is subject to the approval from Nepal Rastra Bank and ratification by the Annual General
Meeting of the shareholders. The proposed distribution shall be recognized in the equity in the period in which they
are paid.

Inland Revenue Office (IRO) - Putalisadak has sent a letter for conducting tax assessment regarding income tax, TDS
and VAT of the company for FY 2075-76. However, the assessment is going on and the company has not received
the preliminary assessment letter till 2022/09/15.

NEPS has entered into agreements with M/s Sunrise Bank Ltd. for VISA Card Connectivity charges & Settlement fee.

Further, NEPS has maintained current and call accounts with these institutions:

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows when the effect of the time value of money is material.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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37 CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements of the Company. A contingent liability is a possible
obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.

Based on the criteria discussed above, provision for claims has been carried forward on account of un authorized
withdrawals made in India during 2019 based on estimated amount required to settle the present oblibation. In case
of unauthorized withdrawals in Nepal, legal case is going on and accordingly no provision has been made. The
unauthorized withdrawals beside the provisioned amount has been considered to be contingent liability amounting Rs.
23,054,576. 

Further, In the fiscal year 2077/78, there has been incident involving unauthorized withdrawal of Rs. 3,435,000
from ATM of a member bank using expired card of a Foreign Bank. The concerned bank has filed a legal case
against the detained accused which is ongoing and accordingly no provision has been made. The withdrawals has
been considered to be contingent liability amounting to Rs 3,435,000.

NEPS has entered into an agreement with BPC Banking Technologies (Asia Pacific) Pte Ltd. for enhancement of
software with new features and perpetual license for USD 634,500 on 1 October 2018. As on 16 July 2022, USD
474,500 has been paid over different period of time and remaining amount will be paid subsequently along with
deliverables.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING NOTICE

g]kfn O{n]S6«f]lgs k]d]G6 l;i6D;\ lnld6]8sf] gjf}+ aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ;"rgf
g]kfn O{n]S6«f]lgs k]d]G6 l;i6D;\ lnld6]8sf] ldlt @)&(÷)*÷)^ ut] a;]sf] ;+rfns ;ldltsf] !$& cf}F a}7ssf] lg0f{o cg';f/ 
sDkgLsf] gjf}+ aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef lgDg lnlvt ldlt, :yfg / ;dodf lgDg laifo pk/ 5nkmn tyf lg0f{o ug{ a:g] ePsfn] 
sDkgL P]g @)^# sf] bkmf ^& cg';f/ ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wlg dxfg'efax?sf] hfgsf/L tyf pkl:yltsf] nflu of] ;"rgf k|sflzt 
ul/Psf] 5 .

;efx'g] ldlt, :yfg / ;doM
ldltM @)&(÷)*÷@(
;doM $ ah]
:yfgM cf/Go a'l6s xf]6n, dgsfdgf /f]8 xflQ;f/, sf7df8f}F
dfWodM ef}lts pkl:ylt dfkm{t

k|:tfjx?
s_ ;fwf/0f k|:tfjM
 !_ cfly{s aif{ @)&*÷&( sf] ;+rfns ;ldltsf] aflif{s k|ltj]bg pk/ 5nkmn ul/ ;f]nfO{ kfl/t ug]{ .
 @_ n]vf kl/Ifssf] k|ltj]bg ;lxtsf] @)&( cfiff9 d;fGtsf] jf;nft, tyf ;f]lx ldltdf ;dfKt ePsf] cfly{s aif{ 

@)&*÷&( sf] gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fa tyf ;f]lx cjlwsf] gub k|afx ljj/0f 5nkmn ul/ :jLs[t ug]{ .
 #_ ;+rfns ;ldltn] k|:tfj u/] adf]lhd !)Ü gub nfef+z -s/ ;lxt_ :jLs[t ug]{ .
 $_ cfly{s aif{ @)&(÷*) sf nflu n]vf kl/Ifssf] lgo'lQm ug]{ tyf lghsf] kfl/>lds lgwf{/0f ug]{ . -n]vf kl/If0f 

;ldltsf] #) cf}F a}7såf/f N.B.S.M. & Associates nfO{ cfly{s aif{ @)&(÷*) sf nflu kfl/>lds @,@),))) 
-d"=c=s/ afx]s_ ;lxt n]vf kl/Ifsdf lgo'lQmsf nflu lzkmfl/; ul/Psf] 5 ._

 %_ ;+rfnssf] lgo'lQm cg'df]bg ug]{ .

v_ laz]if k|:tfa
 !_ g]K; / cGo pko'Qm ;+:yf Ps cfk;df ufEg ufleg -dh{/ ug{ jf k|flKt ug{_ pko'Qm b]lvPdf, ;+:yfsf] rn crn 

;Dklt / bfljTj tyf sf/f]jf/sf] d'Nof+sgsf nflu d"Nof+sgstf{ lgo'QmL ug]{, ufEg] ufleg] jf k|flKt ug]{ ;DalGw 
;Demf}tf ug{ tyf ;f] ;DalGwt cfj:os ;Dk"0f{ sfo{ cuf8L a9fpg ;+rfns ;ldltnfO{ clVtof/L k|bfg ug]{ .

u_ ljljw  

;+rfns ;ldltsf cf1fn]
sDkgL ;lrj
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